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Members of the South Carolina Public Employee 
Benefit Authority 
Columbia, South Carolina 

This report on the audit of the financial statements of the South Carolina Public Employee Benefit 
Authority, Insurance Benefits and Other Post Employment Benefits Trust Funds for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2019, was issued by CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP, Certified Public Accountants, under contract with 
the South Carolina Office of the State Auditor. 

If you have any questions regarding this report, please let us know. 

Respectfully submitted,  

George L. Kennedy, III, CPA 
State Auditor 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Mr. George L. Kennedy, CPA 
State Auditor 
Office of the State Auditor and 
Members of the South Carolina Public  
Employee Benefit Authority 

South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority Insurance Benefits, the South Carolina Retiree  
  Health Insurance Trust Fund and the South Carolina Long-Term Disability Insurance Trust Fund  
Columbia, South Carolina 

Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of South Carolina Public Employee Benefit 
Authority Insurance Benefits, an internal service fund of the State of South Carolina, the South Carolina 
Retiree Health Insurance Trust Fund, a fiduciary fund of the State of South Carolina, and the South Carolina 
Long-Term Disability Insurance Trust Fund, a fiduciary fund of the State of South Carolina, collectively 
referred to as “PEBA Insurance Benefits,” as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise PEBA Insurance Benefits’ basic financial statements 
as listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

1 



 

 

 

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

  

 
 

 
 

 

  

 

a 

Office of the State Auditor and Members 
South Carolina Public 
Employee Benefit Authority 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of PEBA Insurance Benefits as of June 30, 2019, and the respective 
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3-21, Schedule of South Carolina Public Employee 
Benefit Authority, Insurance Benefits’ Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability – South Carolina 
Retirement System on page 74, Schedule of South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority, Insurance 
Benefits’ Employer Pension Contributions – South Carolina Retirement System on page 75, Schedule of 
South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority, Insurance Benefits’ Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB 
Liability on page 76, Schedule of South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority, Insurance Benefits’ 
Employer OPEB Contributions on page 77, Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 
on page 78, Schedule of Net OPEB Liability on page 80, and Schedule of OPEB Investment Returns on 
page 81 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a 
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements 
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 15, 2019, on our consideration of the PEBA Insurance Benefits’ internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to solely describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the result of that testing, and not 
to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of PEBA Insurance Benefits’ internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering PEBA, Insurance Benefits’ internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Baltimore, Maryland 
October 15, 2019 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

This section presents management’s discussion and analysis for the financial performance of South Carolina 
Public Employee Benefit Authority, Insurance Benefits (PEBA, Insurance Benefits), the South Carolina 
Retiree Health Insurance Trust Fund (SCRHITF) and the South Carolina Long-Term Disability Insurance Trust 
Fund (SCLTDITF) during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. This section should be read in conjunction with 
the financial statements and the notes, which follow this section. 

Questions about this report, or requests for additional financial information should be addressed as 
follows: 

Phyllis Buie, Insurance Finance Director Travis Turner, Chief Financial Officer 
PEBA, Insurance Benefits South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority 
202 Arbor Lake Drive 202 Arbor Lake Drive 
Columbia, SC  29223 Columbia, SC 29223 

SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, INSURANCE BENEFITS 

The financial statement presentation required under governmental accounting standards provides a 
comprehensive perspective of the South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority, Insurance Benefits’ 
assets, liabilities, deferred inflows and outflows of financial resources, net position, revenues, expenses, 
changes in net position and cash flows. 

Financial Highlights 

Business Type activities reported an increase in net position of $38,065,916 and total net position of 
$398,286,087 for the year ended June 30, 2019. In comparison, an increase in net position of $42,487,371 
and total net position of $360,220,171 was reported for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

Overview of Financial Statements 

PEBA, Insurance Benefits is a proprietary type internal service fund engaged in Business Type activities. 
Following is a condensed Statement of Net Position, a condensed Statement of Activities and a condensed 
Statement of Cash Flows. 

The Statement of Net Position presents the financial position of PEBA, Insurance Benefits at the end of the 
fiscal year and requires classification of assets and liabilities into current and noncurrent categories. The 
difference between total assets, total liabilities, and deferred inflows and outflows of financial resources is 
reflected in the net position section, which displays net investment in capital assets and unrestricted net 
position. Net position is generally an indicator of the current financial condition of PEBA, Insurance 
Benefits, while the change in net position is generally an indicator of the overall financial condition for the 
year. 
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Overview of Financial Statements (continued) 

In accordance with the provisions of the SCRHITF, excess PEBA, Insurance Benefits’ reserves above 140% of 
incurred but not reported claims, as of December 31 each year, to the extent available in order to maintain 
a reserve balance equal to not less than one and one-half months’ claims expense, will be transferred to 
the SCRHITF the following January. This year, $100,803,193 was transferred to the SCRHITF. The increase in 
net position before this transfer amounted to $138,869,109, which is attributed to better than expected 
claims trend and rebates. 

The Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position present revenue and expenses as 
operating and are detailed by classification. 

The Statement of Cash Flows will aid readers in identifying the sources and uses of cash by the categories of 
operating, non-capital financing and investing activities. 

The following schedule is a condensed version of PEBA, Insurance Benefits’ assets, liabilities, and net 
position and is prepared from the Statement of Net Position. 

Condensed Statements of Net Position 
(in millions) 

June 30, 

2019

June 30, 

2018

Assets

Current assets $                714.1 $                651.1

Noncurrent assets                        0.1                        0.1

Total assets                   714.2                   651.2

Deferred outflow of resources                        3.3                        3.3

Liabilities

Current liabilities                   292.6                   269.2

Noncurrent liabilities                     25.5                     24.1

Total liabilities                   318.1                   293.3

Deferred inflow of resources                        1.1                        1.0

Net position

Net investment in capital assets                        0.1                        0.1

Unrestricted                   398.2                   360.1

Total net position $                398.3 $                360.2
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Overview of Financial Statements (continued) 

The following schedule is a summary of PEBA, Insurance Benefits’ operating results for the fiscal year. 

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
Year Ended June 30, 

(in millions) 

2019 2018

Operating:

Program revenue $                    3,043.7 $                    2,873.1

Expenses                      (3,019.2)                      (2,839.3)

Total operating income                             24.5                             33.8

Non-operating:

Earnings on investments                             13.6                               8.7

Total non-operating income                             13.6                               8.7

Change in net position                             38.1                             42.5

Net position, beginning of the year                           360.2                           317.7
Net position, end of the year $                        398.3 $                        360.2

A condensed version of Statement of Cash Flows is presented as follows: 

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows 
Year Ended June 30, 

(in millions) 

2019 2018

Cash flows from operating activities $                  42.8 $                115.5

Cash flows used in capital and related financing 

activities                       -                      (0.1)

Cash flows from investing activities                     13.6                       9.3

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents                     56.4                   124.7

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year                   542.7                   418.0
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $                599.1 $                542.7
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Overview of PEBA, Insurance Benefits 

PEBA, Insurance Benefits manages group health, dental, life, accidental death and dismemberment, and 
disability programs as authorized in § 1-11-710 and § 1-11-720 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, as well 
as the flexible benefits program (MoneyPlus) as authorized in § 9-1-60, and the employee adoption 
assistance program, pursuant to Proviso 108.2 of the 2018-2019 General Appropriations Act. 

Following is a list of benefits offered by PEBA, Insurance Benefits differentiated according to self-insured 
versus insured status. 

Self-Insured Programs 

• State Health Plan: 
Standard Plan (PPO) 
Medicare Supplement 
Savings Plan (HDHP) 

• MUSC Patient Centered Medical Home Plan (Pilot) 
• State Dental Plan 
• Basic Long Term Disability 
• Adoption Assistance Program 

Insured Programs 

• Tricare Supplement 
• Dental Plus 
• State Life 
• Optional Life 
• Dependent Life 
• Supplemental Long Term Disability 
• Vision 

Benefits are offered to eligible employees and retirees of all state agencies and public school districts, and 
many local governments. As of June 2019, 729 employers participate in the program. The State Health 
Plan is PEBA, Insurance Benefits’ “flagship” product, a “Preferred Provider Organization” model plan which 
encompasses medical, prescription drug, and behavioral health coverage. The State Health Plan is the most 
significant driver of PEBA, Insurance Benefits’ financial activity, accounting for approximately 87.4% of all 
medical revenue. 
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Overview of the State Health Plan 

The State Health Plan (Plan) consists of the Standard Plan, the Medicare Supplement Plan, and the Savings 
Plan.  The majority of Plan subscribers (69.56%) are enrolled in the Standard Plan, a PPO option available to 
non-Medicare and Medicare enrollees. Of the remaining subscribers, 25.66% are enrolled in the Medicare 
Supplement, a retiree option for those enrolled in Medicare and 4.78% are enrolled in the Savings Plan.  
The Savings Plan is a qualified high deductible health plan (HDHP) available to non-Medicare enrollees. 

The State Health Plan remains competitive with other southern state health plans in terms of plan 
deductibles, coinsurance, and prescription drug coverage. In aggregate, the employer contributes around 
78.2% of the total contribution for State Health Plan coverage. The Plan self-contracts provider networks 
for hospitals and physicians. These networks continue to maintain extremely high participation rates. 
Following is a look at total enrollment in the State’s medical insurance programs and enrollment in the 
State Health Plan (as of June 2019). 

All Medical Programs State Health Plan

Total Insured Persons: 507,199                                 482,789                                 

Subscribers: 286,792                                 274,210                                 
Spouses: 83,968                                   80,033                                   
Children: 136,439                                 128,546                                 

Total Subscribers: 286,792                                 274,210                                 

Employees: 193,851                                 181,382                                 
Retirees: 89,545                                   89,468                                   
Survivors: 2,519                                     2,514                                     
COBRA: 713                                         684                                         
Former spouses: 164                                         162                                         

Active Employees: 193,851                                 181,382                                 

State Agencies: 61,172                                   56,662                                   
School Districts: 86,734                                   86,578                                   
Local Government 45,945                                   38,142                                   

7 



 

  
 

     
      
            
      

 
          

          
 
 

   
  

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

State Health Plan Premiums 

The State Health Plan operates under a 4-tier premium structure, varying contribution levels according to 
level of coverage. The coverage levels include Employee Only, Employee/Spouse, Employee/Child, and Full 
Family. As of June 30, 2019, 57.53% of subscribers had Employee Only coverage, and the remaining 42.47% 
covered at least one dependent. 

Premiums range from $6,004.56 annually for Employee Only coverage to $15,663.36 annually for Full 
Family coverage. Following are the monthly 2019 State Health Plan employee and employer rates. 

2019 State Health Plan 
(Standard Plan) 

Monthly Premiums 

ACTUAL RATES

Employee Employer Total
Employee Only $97.68 $402.70 $500.38
Employee / Spouse $253.36 $797.68 $1,051.04
Employee / Child(ren) $143.86 $618.06 $761.92
Full Family $306.56 $998.72 $1,305.28

Composite Rate $159.60 $572.79 $732.39
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State Health Plan Premiums (continued) 

Premium revenue is shared between the employer and the employee (or retiree). 

For 2019, the employer share of premiums increased 7.4% and the employee share dropped 0.1%. The 2019 
employee share reflects approximately 22% of the total premium. 
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State Health Plan Premiums (continued) 

The 2019 composite total premium remains fairly well below both the regional and national levels. For 
2019, the State Health Plan composite total premium was approximately 80% of the regional premium and 
70% of the national premium. 
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State Health Plan Premiums (continued) 

For 2019, the State Health Plan employee composite remained below the regional composite but slightly 
above the national composite. 
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State Health Plan Contribution Increases 

Contribution increases since 2000 are outlined below. 

State Health Plan 
Contribution Increases 

Plan
Year

Employer Rate
Increase

Employee Rate
Increase

Overall Plan
Increase

2000 10.0% 0.0% 8.0%
2001 20.0% 10.4% 18.3%
2002 9.5% 22.6% 11.7%
2003 0.0% 36.9% 6.9%
2004 0.0% 27.6% 6.6%
2005 6.1% 29.7% 13.0%
2006 4.8% 0.0% 3.2%
2007 3.1% 0.0% 2.1%
2008 9.7% 0.0% 6.7%
2009 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
2010 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
2011 10.3% 0.0% 7.2%
2012 4.5% 4.5% 4.5%
2013 6.4% 0.0% 4.6%
2014 6.8% 0.0% 5.1%
2015 3.9% 0.0% 2.9%

2016 4.5% 0.0% 3.4%

2017 0.8% 0.0% 0.6%

2018 3.3% 0.0% 2.5%
2019 7.4% 0.0% 5.7%
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Status of the Plan 

The State Health Plan is currently in a stable financial position and has been able to transfer excess cash 
reserves during this reporting period, as well as for the previous 11 reporting periods, to the South Carolina 
Retiree Health Insurance Trust Fund. 

Following are the plan year changes in growth rate in payments per subscriber since 2001. 

2007 +6.3%
2008 +4.0%
2009 +8.7%
2010 +0.4%
2011 +3.6%
2012 +6.3%
2013 +3.3%
2014 +0.6%
2015 +8.3%
2016 +4.9%
2017 +5.5%
2018 +3.7%

Change is payout/subscriber updated with the most current claims data

   to account for run-out.
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Status of  the  Plan  (continued)  
 
Following are the  plan  year medical utilization  rates (and  growth  rates) per  1,000  insured  persons (SHP  
primary)  from  2006  through  2018  for  office  visits,  ER visits, inpatient  cases, and  outpatient  surgery.   

Office Visits
Utilization Growth

ER Visits
Utilization Growth

I/P Cases
Utilization Growth

2006        6,102. 76          157.22             63.22           113.26
 2007        6,213. 65 +1.8%          159.50 +1.5%             61.92 -2.1%           119.65 +5.6%
2008         6,251.72 +0.6%           158.49 -0.6%             59.95 -3.2%          118.40 -1.0%
2009        6,608. 81 +5.7%           166.02 +4.8%            59.10 -1.4%           116.72 -1.4%
2010         6,268.74 -5.1%           160.53 -3.3%            57.74 -2.3%           114.58 -1.8%
2011         6,192.94 -1.2%           162.35 +1.1%            55.82 -3.3%           114.48 -0.1%
2012         6,624.21 +7.0%          173.03 +6.6%            59.30 +6.2%          113.56 -0.8%
2013        6,762. 58 +2.1%          171.96 -0.6%             55.39 -6.6%           110.07 -3.1%
2014        6,645. 51 -1.7%          181.82 +5.7%            53.20 -4.0%          110.33 +0.2%

2015*         7,100.12 +6.8%           188.08 +3.4%             53.84 +1.2%          109.67 -0.6%
2016*        7,420. 53 +4.5%          193.56 +2.9%             52.14 -3.2%          114.70 +4.6%
2017*        7,915. 69 +6.7%           197.76 +2.2%             53.24 +2.1%           114.05 -0.6%
2018*         8,147.92 +2.9%          196.10 -0.8%             51.98 -2.4%          110.67 -3.0%

* Used new methodology to calculate volume by place of service. This methodology was updated in 2015.

 
 
Plan  year prescription drug utilization  has also  moderated,  as well as shifted t o more cost  effective  delivery  
channels,  as indicated b elow.  

Rx/Insured

Utilization Growth Generic Share Mail Service Share

2006     17.99 50.5% 9.8%

2007     18.41 +2.3% 55.2% 9.9%

2008     18.22 -1.0% 61.3% 9.9%

2009     18.31 +0.5% 62.9% 9.2%

2010     18.06 -1.4% 67.4% 8.9% O/P Surgery

2011     17.95 -0.6% 70.2% 8.5% Utilization Growth

2012     18.21 +1.4% 74.2% 8.1%

2013     18.33 +0.7% 77.0% 7.7%

2014     18.16 -0.9% 79.5% 2.2%

2015*     18.60 +2.4% 81.5% 16.0%

2016*     18.22 -2.0% 84.7% 16.3%
 2017*     17.91 -1.7% 85.6% 15.5%

2018*     17.46 -2.5% 85.6% 22.3%

* Used new reporting method to include both 90-day retail and mail, which

have the same copayments.

14 



 

    
 

       
 

          
   

          
       

   
            

  
      
     

       
   

      
    

      
     

     
      
       
      
      

    
       
        

       
         

      
      

        
 

        
 
 
 
  

Status of the Plan (continued) 

Cost containment initiatives continue to influence the Plan’s positive trend, including the following. 

• Provider reimbursement pricing policy with provider networks (inpatient and outpatient 
hospital settings, professional fee schedules and pharmacy pricing) 

• Utilization review and management (precertification of inpatient cases and certain outpatient 
procedures, disease management of specified conditions, complex care management and 
chronic kidney disease management) 

• Chiropractic limit of $2,000/person/year and limit of one manual therapy unit per visit 
(implemented 2010) 

• Pre-authorization process for high-end radiology procedures (implemented 2010) 
• Tobacco surcharge of $40/contract/month for members with single coverage who use tobacco 

and $60/contract/month for members with dependent coverage who use tobacco or cover a 
family member that does 

• “Evidence-based medicine” initiative involving analysis of claims data and communications 
with doctors regarding best practices 

• Mail service pharmacy through Pharmacy Benefits Manager 
• Prior authorization/step therapy requirements for specified medications, including “preferred 

step therapy” program to steer business to “front-line” generics 
• Closed formulary — non-coverage of non-formulary products 
• “Pay-the-difference” policy for brand drugs with generic equivalents 
• “Gold standard” smoking cessation program 
• Voluntary Data Sharing Agreement with Medicare (maintain current Medicare eligibility on all 

subscribers yielding significant cost savings) 
• Significant patient cost sharing for all service types 
• Pharmaceutical manufacturer rebates (for all health plans); the Plan received approximately 

$249.15 million in rebates during the current fiscal year 
• Implementation of a Medicare Part D Prescription Drug Program; the Plan received about 

$136.79 million in subsidies during the current fiscal year 
• A Wellness Incentive, which provides free generic drugs for participants with cardiovascular 

disease or diabetes who participate in a wellness program for these conditions (implemented 
2010) 

• Narrow pharmacy networks for specialty drugs and for retail maintenance 
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Going Forward: 

Several points of interest going forward include the following. 

• PEBA, Insurance Benefits will retain its “grandfathered” status under the Patient Protection and 
Affordable Care Act (ACA) for 2020. 

• This past year’s legislative session provided for a 7.4% increase in the employer contribution rates 
beginning January 2019; employee contribution rates will remain the same. For 2020, there were 
no rate increases for employers or employees and no plan design changes. 

• A Tricare supplement will again be offered to non-Medicare subscribers on an employee pay all 
basis 

• The MUSC Health Plan will continue in 2020 as a pilot to employees and dependents of MUSC and 
the Medical University Hospital Authority to reduce health care costs while improving the health of 
an entire population. 

SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREE HEALTH INSURANCE TRUST FUND 

The SCRHITF was established by the State of South Carolina through Act 195 on May 1, 2008.  In accordance 
with Act 195, the SCRHITF was created to provide for the employer costs of retiree post-employment 
health and dental insurance benefits for retired state employees and retired employees of public school 
districts. As of the SCRHITF valuation date of June 30, 2018 (the latest plan actuarial evaluation date), there 
were 249 participating employers and 275,890 eligible plan participants (179,818 active, 94,814 retired, 
and 1,258 vested terminated). The South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority (PEBA) administers 
the SCRHITF and the PEBA Board has been designated as the Trustee. The State Treasurer is the custodian 
of the funds held in the SCRHITF and invests those funds in accordance with the statutes of the State. 

Financial Highlights 

• Net position held in trust, as reported in the Statement of Plan Fiduciary Net Position, totaled 

$1.395 billion at June 30, 2019, a change of $178.210 million from the prior year. 

• Total additions as reflected in the Statement of Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position totaling 

$714.189 million are a result of contributions, investment income, and securities lending activities 

income. 

• Total deductions as reflected in the Statement of Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position totaling 

$535.979 million are a result of benefit and administrative expenses. 
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Overview of Financial Statements 

The SCRHITF has two basic financial statements, the notes to the financial statements and the three 
required supplementary schedules. The basic financial statements and the required disclosures comply with 
the accounting principles and reporting guidelines as set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board, utilizing the accrual basis of accounting. 

The Statement of Plan Fiduciary Net Position is the first basic financial report. This is a snapshot of account 
balances at fiscal year-end. This statement reflects assets available for future payments to retirees and 
their beneficiaries and any current liabilities owed as of fiscal year end. 

The following schedule is a condensed version of the SCRHITF’s assets, liabilities, and fiduciary net position 
and is prepared from the Statement of Plan Fiduciary Net Position: 

Condensed Statements of Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

2019 2018

Total assets $   1,424,742,753 $  1,224,074,265 

Total liabilities           30,002,704            7,544,203 

Net position held in trust for other postemployment benefits $  1,394,740,049 $  1,216,530,062 

 
 
 

The Statement of Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position is the second financial report. This report reflects 
all the activities that occurred during the fiscal year and shows the impact of those activities as additions or 
deductions to the plan. The trend of additions versus deductions to the plan will indicate the condition of 
the SCRHITF’s financial position over time. 
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Overview of Financial Statements (continued) 

The following schedule is a condensed version of the SCRHITF’s additions, deductions and changes in plan 
net position and is prepared from the Statement of Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position: 

Condensed Statements of Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

2019 2018

Total additions 714,188,796$      567,941,870$      

Total deductions 535,978,809        466,186,568        

Net increase in net position held in trust for other

postemployment benefits (OPEB) 178,209,987        101,755,302        

Net position held in trust for OPEB, beginning of year 1,216,530,062     1,114,774,760     

Net position held in trust for OPEB, end of year 1,394,740,049$   1,216,530,062$   

The Notes to the Financial Statements (Notes) are an integral part of the financial reports. The Notes 
provide detailed discussion of key policies, programs, and activities that occurred during the period. 

Plan Assets and Key Percentages 

As of June 30, 2019, the SCRHITF had $1.395 billion in Net Position (total assets of $1.425 billion exceeding 
total liabilities of $30.003 million). The Plan Fiduciary Net Position represents funds available for future 
payments. 

The SCRHITF’s independent actuary, Gabriel, Roeder, Smith and Company, performed an actuarial valuation 
as of June 30, 2018 which was rolled forward to June 30, 2019 to determine the net OPEB liability to be 
$15.122 billion. The Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage of total OPEB liability was 8.44% at the 
valuation date. The net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll was 172.84% at the 
valuation date. 

Additions and Deductions to Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

The primary sources which finance the health and dental benefits the SCRHITF provides are the collection 
of employer contributions, additional State appropriations, accumulated PEBA, Insurance Benefits reserve 
balances, and income generated from investments. For the period ending June 30, 2019, total additions 
amounted to $714,188,796. Employer contributions accounted for $533,327,818 that is a result of a 
surcharge of 6.05% on each employer’s payroll. The surcharge is an estimated amount to cover the 
employer portion of the “pay go” costs of retiree claims and is collected by and transferred from the South 
Carolina Retirement System to the SCRHITF. Other additions were state appropriations of $2,375,300, a 
transfer of $100,803,193 based on the amount of PEBA, Insurance Benefits cash reserves available over 
140% of the actuarial determined incurred but not reported claims (IBNR) at December 31, 2018, and 

18 



 

     
 

           
           

    
 

        
  

 

  
 

        
      

    
       

 
     

 
          

          
          

         
          

          
                

 
  

 

         

       

           

      

 

            

      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Overview of Financial Statements (continued) 

$77,682,485 in investment income. It is composed of interest earnings and securities lending activities of 
$32,089,583, net realized gains of $1,099,730, net unrealized gains of $44,942,337 and net unrealized 
losses from value in securities lending of $449,165. 

For the period ending June 30, 2019, total deductions amounted to $535,978,809, which was a result of 
claims and administrative expenses. 

Future Funding 

Going forward into 2020, the net OPEB liability will be funded primarily through the surcharge on 
employer’s payroll. Effective July 1, 2019, the surcharge will increase to 6.25%. Other funding sources will 
include excess PEBA, Insurance Benefits reserves, additional State appropriations (which in this year’s 
budget totaled $2,375,300) and investment earnings. 

SOUTH CAROLINA LONG-TERM DISABILITY INSURANCE TRUST FUND 

The SCLTDITF was established by the State of South Carolina through Act 195 on May 1, 2008.  In 
accordance with Act 195, the SCLTDITF was created to fund and account for the employer costs of the 
State’s Basic Long-Term Disability Income Benefit Plan. As of June 30, 2018 (the latest plan actuarial 
valuation date), there were 724 participating employers and 190,260 eligible plan participants (189,304 
active and 956 retired). The South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority (PEBA) administers the 
SCLTDITF and the PEBA Board has been designated as the Trustee. The State Treasurer is the custodian of 
the funds held in the SCLTDITF and invests those funds in accordance with the statutes of the State. 

Financial Highlights 

• Net position held in trust, as reported in the Statement of Plan Fiduciary Net Position, totaled 

$38.776 million, an increase of $2.576 million from the prior year. 

• Total additions as reflected in the Statement of Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position of $10.506 

million represent contributions revenue, investment income and securities lending activities 

income. 

• Total deductions as reflected in the Statement of Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position of $7.930 

million represent benefit and administrative expenses. 
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Overview of Financial Statements 

The SCLTDITF has two basic financial statements, the notes to the financial statements, and the three 
required supplementary schedules. The basic financial statements and the required disclosures comply with 
the accounting principles and reporting guidelines as set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board, utilizing the accrual basis of accounting. 

The Statement of Plan Fiduciary Net Position is the first basic financial report. This is a snapshot of account 
balances at fiscal year-end. This statement reflects assets available for future payments to beneficiaries and 
any current liabilities owed as of fiscal year end. 

The following schedule is a condensed version of the SCLTDITF’s assets, liabilities, and net position and is 
prepared from the Statement of Plan Fiduciary Net Position: 

Condensed Statements of Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

2019 2018

Total assets 39,317,133$        37,456,066$        

Total liabilities 541,633                1,256,203             

Net position held in trust for other postemployment benefits 38,775,500$        36,199,863$        

The Statement of Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position is the second financial report. This report reflects all 
of the activities that occurred during the fiscal year and shows the impact of those activities as additions or 
deductions to the plan. The trend of additions versus deductions to the plan will indicate the condition of the 
SCLTDITF’s financial position over time. 

The following schedule is a condensed version of the SCLTDITF’s additions, deductions and changes in plan 
net position and is prepared from the Statement of Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position: 

Condensed Statements of Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

2019 2018

Total additions 10,505,605$        7,532,785$          

Total deductions 7,929,968             8,030,511             

Net increase (decrease) in net position held in trust for other

postemployment benefits (OPEB) 2,575,637             (497,726)               

Net position held in trust for OPEB, beginning of year 36,199,863          36,697,589          

Net position held in trust for OPEB, end of year 38,775,500$        36,199,863$        
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Overview of Financial Statements (continued) 

The Notes to the Financial Statements (Notes) are an integral part of the financial reports. The Notes 
provide detailed discussion of key policies, programs, and activities that occurred during the period. 

Plan Assets and Key Percentages 

As of June 30, 2019, the SCLTDITF has $38,775,500 in net position. The Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
represents funds available for future payments. 

The SCLTDITF’s independent actuary, Gabriel, Roeder, Smith and Company, performed an actuarial 
valuation as of June 30, 2018 which was rolled forward to June 30, 2019 to determine the net OPEB liability 
to be $1,968,255. The Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage of total OPEB liability was 95.17% at the 
valuation date. 

Additions and Deductions to Plan Net Position 

The primary sources which finance the long-term disability benefits the SCLTDITF provides are investment 
income and the collection of employer contributions. For the period ended June 30, 2019, total additions 
amounted to $10,505,605. Employer contributions to the SCLTDITF were $7,532,690 for premiums that are 
billed and transferred by PEBA, Insurance Benefits on a monthly basis. At June 30, 2019, there was a net 
gain in investment income of $2,972,915. It is composed of interest earnings and securities lending 
activities of $1,134,376, net realized losses of $15,259, net unrealized gains of $1,837,581 and net 
unrealized gains from value in securities lending of $16,217. For the period ending June 30, 2019, total 
deductions amounted to $7,929,968 resulting from claims expense and administrative expenses. 

Future Funding 

The Net OPEB Liability is 95.17% funded and going forward into 2020, the premium charged to employers 
will remain static. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 

INSURANCE BENEFITS 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2019 

Assets 

Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Premiums receivable 

Prescription drug rebate receivable 

Medicare Part D subsidy receivable 

Accrued interest 

Prepaid items 

Deposit 

Total current assets 

$ 599,092,108 

1,420,406 

51,393,380 

61,586,016 

9,666 

457,124 

164,244 

714,122,944 

Non-current assets: 

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 57,991 

Total assets 714,180,935 

Deferred outflow of resources 3,302,609 

Liabilities 

Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued payroll 

Accrued compensated absences - current portion 

Unearned premium revenue 

Claims payable and administrative fees 

Claims incurred but not reported 

Total current liabilities 

798,113 

668,149 

19,747,243 

99,379,677 

171,970,174 

292,563,356 

Long-term liabilities: 

Accrued compensated absences 

Net OPEB liability 

Net pension liability 

Total long-term liabilities 

304,887 

11,158,027 

14,089,173 

25,552,087 

Total liabilities 318,115,443 

Deferred inflow of resources 1,082,014 

Net Position 

Net investment in capital assets 

Unrestricted 

57,991 

398,228,096 

Total net position $ 398,286,087 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 

INSURANCE BENEFITS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, 

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Operating Revenue 

Insurance premiums: 

Active employees $ 1,869,501,220 

Retirees 783,896,989 

Total insurance premiums 2,653,398,209 

Prescription drug rebates 249,150,747 

Medicare Part D subsidy 136,786,938 

Administrative fees and other 4,330,608 

Total operating revenue          3,043,666,502 

Operating Expenses: 

Claims          2,650,870,765 

Premiums             171,519,254 

Non-employer contributions for OPEB             100,803,193 

Third party administrative fees                80,277,913 

Salaries and benefits 11,112,403 

Other services 2,358,305 

Professional services 747,357 

Adoption assistance program                     297,305 

Other operating expenses 1,253,360 

Total operating expenses          3,019,239,855 

Operating income 24,426,647 

Non-operating revenue: 

Income from deposits                13,639,269 

Change in net position                38,065,916 

Net position, beginning of year             360,220,171 

Net position, end of year $ 398,286,087 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 

INSURANCE BENEFITS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

Premiums received from customers $ 2,651,562,012 

Other receipts 383,464,381 

Payments to employees (9,497,479) 

Payments for other post employment benefits (100,803,193) 

Payments to providers, suppliers and others (2,881,927,198) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 42,798,523 

Cash Flows Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities 

Purchase of capital assets (94,234) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 

Interest received-deposits and investments 13,636,273 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 56,340,562 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 542,751,546 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 599,092,108 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 

INSURANCE BENEFITS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash from operating activities 

Operating income $ 24,426,647 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash from 

operating activities: 

Depreciation expense                       97,135 

Pension charges                     977,318 

OPEB charges                     504,124 

Effect of changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Premiums receivable                    (540,297) 

Prescription drug rebate receivable                (4,381,152) 

Medicare Part D Subsidy receivable                (2,422,759) 

Prepaid expenses                    (167,132) 

Deposits                     829,902 

Accounts payable, accrued payroll and compensated absences                     133,481 

Unearned premium revenue                (1,295,901) 

Claims payable, administrative fees and incurred but not reported                24,637,157 

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 42,798,523 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY 

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

STATEMENTS OF PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2019 

South  Carolina  Retiree 

Health  Insurance 

Trust Fund 

South  Carolina  Long-Term 

Disability  Insurance 

Trust Fund 

Assets : 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 78,337,392 $ 2,590,470 

Invested securities lending collateral 29,394,993 -

Due from South Carolina Retirement Systems 73,900,804 -

Accrued interest receivable 7,953,314 302,363 

Investments 1,235,156,250 36,424,300 

Total assets 1,424,742,753 39,317,133 

Liabilities : 

Collateral for loaned securities 30,002,704 -

Claims payable - 541,633 

Total liabilities 30,002,704 541,633 

Net position held in trust for other postemployment 

benefits $ 1,394,740,049 $ 38,775,500 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY 

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

South  Carolina  Retiree 

Health  Insurance 

Trust Fund 

South  Carolina  Long-Term 

Disability  Insurance 

Trust Fund 

Additions: 

Contributions: 

Employer contributions  $                            533,327,818  $                                7,532,690 

Nonemployer  contributions                               103,178,493   -    

Total contributions                               636,506,311                                    7,532,690 

Investment income                                 77,656,257                                    2,968,988 

Securities lending  activities income: 

Gross  earnings from interest  and fees                                       322,791                                         25,903 

Gross  borrower rebates                                     (293,652)                                        (21,541)

Bank fees                                          (2,911)                                             (435) 

Net earnings from securities lending  activities                                         26,228                                             3,927  

Total additions                               714,188,796                                  10,505,605  

Deductions: 

Benefits  expense                               535,093,624                                    7,889,317 

Administrative expenses                                       885,185                                          40,651  

Total deductions                               535,978,809                                     7,929,968  

Change in net position  held in trust for  OPEB                               178,209,987                                    2,575,637 

Net position  held in trust for  other postemployment 

benefits,  beginning  of  year                            1,216,530,062                                  36,199,863  

Net position  held in trust for  other postemployment 

benefits  $                        1,394,740,049   $                              38,775,500  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY,  
INSURANCE BENEFITS  

&  
OTHER  POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS  

 
NOTES TO  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS  

JUNE 30, 2019  

1. Description 

General 
The South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority (PEBA) was created by the South Carolina General 
Assembly as part of Act No. 278 effective July 1, 2012. PEBA is a state agency responsible for the 
administration and management of the state’s employee insurance programs, other post-employment 
benefits trusts and retirement systems and is part of the State of South Carolina primary government. 

The governing board of PEBA is a board of 11 members. The membership composition is three members 
appointed by the Governor, two members appointed by the President Pro Tempore of the Senate, two 
members appointed by the Chairman of the Senate Finance Committee, two members appointed by the 
Speaker of the House of Representatives and two members appointed by the Chairman of the House Ways 
and Means Committee. Individuals appointed to the PEBA board must possess certain qualifications. 
Members of the PEBA board serve for terms of two years and until their successors are appointed and 
qualify. Terms commence on July 1st of even numbered years. The PEBA board appoints the Executive 
Director. The laws of the State and the policies and procedures specified by the State for State agencies 
are applicable to all activities of PEBA. By law, the State Fiscal Accountability Authority (SFFA), which 
consists of five elected officials, also reviews certain PEBA Board decisions in administering the State 
Health Plan and other post-employment benefits. 

The financial statements presented include the South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority, 
Insurance Benefits (PEBA, Insurance Benefits) and the other post-employment benefits trust funds, the 
South Carolina Retiree Health Insurance Trust Fund and the South Carolina Long-Term Disability Insurance 
Trust Fund. The financial statements were prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental entities. The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental 
accounting and financial reporting principles. 

The core of the financial reporting entity is the primary government, which has a separately elected 
governing body. As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, 
the financial reporting entity includes both the primary government and all of its component units. An 
organization other than a primary government may serve as a nucleus for a reporting entity when it issues 
separate financial statements. That organization is identified herein as a primary entity and these 
financials are included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the State of South Carolina. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Description (Continued) 

The primary government or entity is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the 
organization’s governing body, including situations in which the voting majority consists of the primary 
entity’s officials serving as required by law (e.g. employees who serve in an ex officio capacity on the 
component unit’s board are considered appointments by the primary entity) and 

(1) it is able to impose its will on that organization or 
(2) there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific 
financial burdens on, the primary entity. 

The primary entity also may be financially accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent on it even 
if it does not appoint a voting majority of the board. An organization is fiscally dependent on the primary 
entity that holds one or more of the following powers: 

(1) Determine its budget without another government’s having the authority to approve and modify 
that budget; 
(2) Levy taxes or set rates or charges without approval by another government 
(3) Issue bond debt without approval by another government. 

Based on these criteria, this report has no component units or any other parts of the State of South 
Carolina primary government included. 

PEBA, Insurance Benefits 
The PEBA, Insurance Benefits manages the group health, dental, life, accidental death and 
dismemberment and disability programs as authorized in Sections 1-11-710 and 1-11-720 of the South 
Carolina Code of Laws of 1976, as amended. 

The PEBA, Insurance Benefits provides health insurance to eligible employees and retirees of State 
agencies and its political subdivisions who elect coverage. Coverage elections include three self-insured 
health plans. The State Health Plan offers a High Deductible Health Plan (SHP Savings Plan), a Preferred 
Provider Organization (SHP Standard Plan) and Medicare Supplement. Tricare Supplement Plan is a fully 
insured product. Dental coverage is through the State’s self-insured plan, which is available to eligible 
employees and retirees. An additional dental option is offered to subscribers, Dental Plus, which is a fully-
insured product. Dental Plus is an employee pay all plan that supplements the State Dental Plan.  Dental 
coverage is required to elect Dental Plus. The Basic Long-Term Disability Plan is a self-insured group long-
term disability plan available to eligible active employees enrolled in a State health plan. Supplemental 
long-term disability, Optional Life and Dependent and/or Spouse Life are fully insured products offered to 
eligible employees. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Description (Continued) 

For active State employees, the employee share of monthly premiums is paid through payroll deductions 
and the respective employer pays the employer’s monthly premium portion for active employees. For all 
other entities (School Districts, Higher Education Institutions, and Local Subdivisions), the employer is 
responsible for remitting the employer and employee monthly premium for active employees. 

Retirees of the State and School Districts pay most of their monthly premiums through withholdings from 
individual retirement benefits, with the remaining individually billed. The employer portion is paid by the 
South Carolina Retiree Health Trust Fund through monthly employer surcharge contributions. 

For Local Subdivisions, the employer is also responsible for collecting the retiree monthly premium and 
remitting the entire monthly premium to the PEBA, Insurance Benefits. 

Details on Eligibility requirements and coverage for all plans are contained in the Insurance Benefits Guide. 
Premium rates for all plans are reviewed on a calendar year basis and adjusted as considered necessary 
after actuarial calculations. 

The State of South Carolina as the predominant participant retains the risk of loss for the self-insured 
health, dental and basic long-term disability coverages. 

Other Post-Employment Benefits Trust Funds 
The Other Post-Employment Benefits Trust Funds (OPEB Trusts), collectively refers to the South Carolina 
Retiree Health Insurance Trust Fund (SCRHITF) and the South Carolina Long-Term Disability Insurance 
Trust Fund (SCLTDITF), were established by the State of South Carolina as Act 195, which became effective 
in May 2008. The SCRHITF was created to fund and account for the employer costs of the State’s retiree 
health and dental plans. The SCLTDITF was created to fund and account for the employer costs of the 
State’s Basic Long-Term Disability Income Benefit Plan. 

The SCRHITF is a healthcare plan that covers retired employees of the State of South Carolina, including 
all agencies and public school districts. The SCRHITF provides health and dental insurance benefits to 
eligible retirees. 

The SCLTDITF is a long-term disability plan that covers employees of the State of South Carolina, including 
all agencies and public school districts and all participating local governmental entities. The SCLTDITF 
provides disability payments to eligible employees. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Description (Continued) 

Risks and Uncertainties 
The OPEB Trusts invest in various investment securities. Investment securities are exposed to various risks 
such as interest rate, market and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment 
securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment securities will occur 
in the near term and that such change could materially affect the amounts reported in the statement of 
plan net position available for benefits. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Presentations 
The PEBA, Insurance Benefits is an internal service fund and in its stand-alone financial statements is 
considered a proprietary fund. The financial statement presentation provides a comprehensive, entity-
wide perspective of the fund’s net position, revenue, expenses and changes in net position and cash flows. 
Net position is segregated into net investment in capital assets, restricted net position and unrestricted 
net position components. 

The OPEB Trusts exist for the benefit of each plan’s participants and may not be utilized for any other 
purpose. They are part of the State of South Carolina’s primary government and are included in the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the State of South Carolina. In making this determination, 
factors of financial accountability, governance and fiduciary responsibility of the state were considered. 

Basis of Accounting 

All financial statements have been presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues and contributions are recognized in the period in which they are 
earned and become measurable; expenses and benefits are recognized in the period incurred and 
payable, if measurable. Claims liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the 
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
The amounts shown in the accompanying financial statements as cash and cash equivalents represent 
cash on hand, cash on deposit in banks and cash invested in various instruments as part of the State’s cash 
management pool, an internal investment pool. Because the cash management pool operates as a 
demand deposit account, amounts invested in the pool are classified as cash and cash equivalents. The 
State Treasurer administers the cash management pool. The pool includes some long-term investments 
such as obligations of the United States, government sponsored entities and domestic corporations, 
certificates of deposit and collateralized repurchase agreements held in the State’s name. 

Most entities in the primary government participate in the cash management pool except for some 
agencies due to restrictions on the use of funds. For activities excluded from the pool, cash equivalents 
include investments in short-term, highly liquid securities having a maturity at the time of purchase of 
three months or less. With respect to investments in the State’s internal cash management pool, all of 
the State Treasurer’s investments are insured or registered or are investments for which the securities are 
held by the State or its agents in the State’s name. Information pertaining to the reported amounts, fair 
values and credit risk of the State Treasurer’s investments is disclosed in the State’s CAFR. 

The State’s cash management pool consists of a general deposit account and several special deposit 
accounts. The state records each fund’s equity interest in the general deposit account. All earnings on 
that account are recorded in the General Fund. In contrast, each special deposit account retains its own 
earnings. 

The amounts shown in the financial statements as cash and cash equivalents for PEBA, Insurance Benefits 
represents cash on deposit with the State Treasurer as part of the State’s internal cash management pool, 
and cash invested in various short-term instruments by the State Treasurer and held in separate agency 
accounts. 

Cash and cash equivalents for the OPEB Trusts consist mainly of collateralized repurchase agreements 
held by the State or its agent in the name of the State Treasurer as custodian and restricted to the related 
trust fund. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Investments 
The State Treasurer is authorized by statute to be the custodian of and invest all State funds. The State 
Treasurer’s investment objectives are preservation of capital, maintenance of adequate liquidity and 
obtaining the best yield possible within prescribed parameters. To meet those objectives, the State 
Treasurer uses various resources including an investment advisory service, electronic financial quotation 
and information services, various economic reports and daily communication with brokers and financial 
institution investment officers. 

To insure safety of principal, the State Treasurer’s policy is to limit liquid investments, maturities not 
exceeding one year, to cash, repurchase agreements (collateralized by United States Treasury or federal 
agency obligations with a market value in excess of 100.00% of funds advanced), United States Treasury 
bills, federal agency discount notes and commercial paper. The State Treasurer further preserves principal 
by investing in only the highest investment grade securities; those rated at least A by two leading national 
rating services. In order to diversify investment holdings, asset allocation policies are utilized for 
investments having more than one year to maturity. Overall credit exposure is managed by asset 
allocation policies and by additional constraints controlling risk exposure to individual corporate issuers. 

Investments are stated at fair value determined by the custodian from the last reported sales price as 
provided by Bank of New York Mellon. Net unrealized appreciation or depreciation for the year is reflected 
in the statement of changes in plan net position and is included as a component of investment income. 

Receivables 
For financial statement presentations enclosed herein, receivables are recorded when earned and due. 
No allowance for bad debt is required, as amounts are written-off when deemed uncollectible. 
Receivables due from other State Agencies are shown in Note 10. 

Prepaid Items 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods. These payments are 
shown as prepaid items so to reflect consumption in the future reporting period. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Capital Assets 
Capital assets are valued at original acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation from the purchase 
date. Assets donated are valued at fair market value at the date of the gift. One class of capital assets, 
furniture and equipment, is used. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not significantly 
add to the value of an asset or materially extend an asset’s useful life are not capitalized.  Depreciation is 
recorded using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of 3-10 years. The capitalization 
dollar threshold limit for capital assets is $5,000. 

Unearned Premium Revenue 
Premiums billed in advance or payments received in advance of when coverage is due, or collections of 
overpayments of amounts billed not earned are recorded as unearned premium revenue. 

Claims Payable and Administrative Fees 
Claims payable and administrative fees represent claims and fees related to health, dental and long-term 
disability expenses payable at June 30, 2019. The claims payable balance is based on claims that have 
been paid by the third party administrators for the fiscal year presented and total $99,379,677. 
Administrative fees payable at June 30, 2019 total $536,243. 

Compensated Absences 
Full-time employees earn 1.25 days of vacation leave per month and 1.25 days of sick leave. Employees 
with more than ten years of service earn an additional 1.25 days of vacation leave per year for each year 
of continuous State service in excess of ten years. This caps at 22 years in which an employee would earn 
18.75 hours of vacation leave a month which equals 30 days, the maximum amount of vacation leave an 
employee can earn in any one calendar year. Sick leave earnings remain at 15 days per calendar year. 
Employees may carry forward 45 days of vacation leave and 180 days of sick leave from one calendar year 
to the next. Upon termination from State employment, a lump sum payment will be made to an employee 
for any unused accumulated vacation leave, not to exceed 45 days, at the rate the employee is being paid 
at the time of termination. The vacation leave payment is subject to retirement contribution if the 
employee is classified as a Class II membership, anyone hired prior to July 1, 2012. Employees are not 
paid for unused accumulated sick leave. However, at retirement, employees classified as a Class II 
membership receive service credit for not more than 90 days of unused accumulated sick leave. The 
additional service credit may not be used to qualify an employee for retirement. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
In addition to assets, the statement of net position reports a separate section for deferred outflows of 
resources representing a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s). 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position reports a separate section for deferred inflows of 
resources representing an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s). 

The PEBA, Insurance Benefits statement of net position includes a deferred outflow and inflow related to 
the Net OPEB Liability as detailed in Note 4 and Net Pension Liability as detailed in Note 8. As of June 30, 
2019, the deferred outflow amount of $3,302,609 consists of $628,398 from the Net OPEB Liability and 
$2,674,211 from the Net Pension Liability. As of June 30, 2019, the deferred inflow amount of $1,082,014 
consists of $999,103 from the Net OPEB Liability and $82,911 from the Net Pension Liability. 

Pensions 
In government-wide financial statements, pensions are required to be recognized and disclosed using the 
accrual basis of accounting, regardless of the amount recognized as pension expenditures on the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. PEBA, Insurance Benefits recognizes their pension related liabilities and 
expenses on the same basis as the separately issued statements provided by the South Carolina 
Retirement System (please see note 8). PEBA, Insurance Benefits recognizes a net pension liability for 
each qualified pension plan in which it participates, which represents the excess of the total pension 
liability over the fiduciary net position of the qualified pension plan, or PEBA, Insurance Benefits’ 
proportionate share thereof in the case of a cost-sharing multiple employer plan, measured as of PEBA, 
Insurance Benefits’ fiscal year-end. 

Changes in the net pension liability during the period are recorded as pension expense, or as deferred 
outflows or inflows of resources depending on the nature of the change, in the period incurred. Those 
changes in net pension liability that are recorded as deferred outflows or inflows of resources that arise 
from changes in actuarial assumptions or other inputs and differences between expected or actual 
experience are amortized over the weighted average remaining service life of all participants in the 
respective qualified pension plan and recorded as a component of pension expense beginning with the 
period in which they are incurred. Projected earnings on qualified plan investments are recognized as a 
component of pension expense. Differences between projected and actual investment earnings are 
reported as deferred outflows or inflows of resources and amortized as a component of pension expense 
on a closed basis over a five-year period beginning with the period in which the difference occurred. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Net Position 
Net position for PEBA, Insurance Benefits is recorded in three categories: 

Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and 
reduced by outstanding balances for bonds, notes and other debt that are attributed to the 
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. 

Restricted net position results when constraints placed on the use of net position are imposed by 
creditors, grantors, contributors and the like or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or 
enabling legislation. SC PEBA did not have restricted net position at June 30, 2019. 

Unrestricted net position consists of net position that does not meet the definition of restricted net 
position or investment in capital assets. 

The unrestricted net position of the PEBA, Insurance Benefits is required by State statute to be used for 
the purposes of providing insurance benefits for employees and retirees. 

Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires the need to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain 
reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results may differ from those estimates. 

3. Deposits, Investments and Securities Lending Transactions 

As prescribed by Statute, the State Treasurer is the custodian and investment manager of all deposits of 
the entities. 

For purposes of the PEBA, Insurance Benefits statement of cash flows, all amounts held by the State 
Treasurer’s Office are considered highly liquid securities with a maturity of three months or less at the 
time of purchase. Fair value of cash and cash equivalents reported approximates the carrying value. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Deposits, Investments and Securities Lending Transactions (Continued) 

Cash deposits held by the State Treasurer’s Office as of June 30, 2019 for financials presented were as 
follows: 

PEBA, Insurance Benefits 599,092,108$            

SCRHITF 3,367,392$                 

SCLTDITF 110,470$                    

Cash deposits held by the State Treasurer’s Office and its third party administrator are exposed to 
custodial credit risk. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the entities’ 
deposits may not be returned. The entities do not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of 
June 30, 2019, the entities’ deposits were collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial 
institution’s trust department or agent, but not in the entities’ name. 

Deposits held by the State Treasurer’s Office are classified by risk category in the Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report of the State of South Carolina. Information about the classification of a portion of its 
pooled funds is not available. 

The amounts classified as investments in the financial statements comprise investments held by the OPEB 
Trusts, which are legally restricted and earnings thereon and is revenue of the specific trust from which 
the investments were made. The OPEB Trusts’ investments are specific, identifiable investment securities 
held at Bank of New York Mellon. 

For investment classifications reported below, the balances therein fluctuated minimally in excess of the 
year-end balances throughout the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. As discussed in Note 2, investments 
are reported at fair value. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Deposits, Investments and Securities Lending Transactions (Continued) 

The following represents the fair values of the OPEB Trusts investments at June 30, 2019: 

Fair Value - OPEB Trust Funds

SCRHITF SCLTDITF

Collateralized mortgage-backed obligations 85,862,275$               1,931,032$                 

U.S. government and agency securities 731,841,765               16,958,216                 

Corporate bonds 314,617,899               12,364,635                 

Financial paper 102,834,311               5,170,417                   

Cash equivalents 74,970,000                 2,480,000                   

Total 1,310,126,250$         38,904,300$               

Due to higher cash flows at certain times during the year, the repurchase agreements fluctuated 
significantly throughout the fiscal year. The maximum amounts in this classification during the year ended 
June 30, 2019 were $146,310,000 for the SCRHITF and $2,480,000 for the SCLTDITF. Repurchase 
agreements are classified as cash and cash equivalents in the OPEB Trusts’ Statement of Plan Net Position. 

The OPEB Trusts investments are subject to credit risk. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other 
counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations to the State. The State Treasurer’s credit policy 
mitigates potential for loss of principal by purchasing only high investment grade fixed-income securities. 
In the event that the rating of a security falls below investment grade, that security may continue to be 
held contingent upon an evaluation of the longer term investment merits of the security. 

As of June 30, 2019, the investments rated by Moody’s stated at fair value were as follows: 
Fair Value - OPEB Trust Funds

AAA/AA A1/A2/A3 BAA/BA B1/B2/B3 P-1/P-2 Not Rated Total

Collateralized 

mortgage-backed 

obligations 87,793,307$     -$                    -$                    -$               -$                 -$               87,793,307$         

U.S. government 

and agency 

securities 748,799,981     -                       -                       -                 -                    -                 748,799,981         

Financial paper 13,392,667        60,394,486        34,217,575        -                 -                 108,004,728         

Corporate bonds 15,694,261        86,422,080        215,032,128     2,231,215     -                    7,602,850     326,982,534         

Cash equivalents -                       -                       -                       -                 77,450,000     -                 77,450,000            

Total 865,680,216$   146,816,566$   249,249,703$   2,231,215$  77,450,000$  7,602,850$  1,349,030,550$   
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Deposits, Investments and Securities Lending Transactions (Continued) 

The OPEB Trusts investments are subject to interest rate risk.  Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in 
interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The State Treasurer’s policy does not 
specifically address interest rate risk. Its objectives for preservation of capital and maintenance of 
adequate liquidity focus the management of interest rate sensitivity on investing in securities with a range 
of maturities from one day to thirty years. 

At June 30, 2019 the maturities of the investments for the OPEB Trusts that will mature were limited 
according to the following segmented time distribution: 

Fair Value - OPEB Trust Funds Maturities (in years)

Less than 1 1  -  5 6  -  10 More than 10 Total

Collateralized mortgage-

backed obligations $                  - $            48,148 $              1,445 $    87,743,714 $       87,793,307

U.S. government and 

agency securities       84,075,651     280,345,258     241,441,349     142,937,723        748,799,981

Financial paper       13,440,718       56,323,011       35,000,832         3 ,240,167        108,004,728

Corporate bonds       30,743,625     224,074,594       70,017,211         2 ,147,104        326,982,534

Cash equivalents       77,450,000                      -                      -                      -          7 7,450,000

Total $ 2 05,709,994 $ 5 60,791,011 $ 3 46,460,837 $ 2 36,068,708 $ 1 ,349,030,550

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s investments 
in a single issuer. The State’s policy for reducing the risk is to diversify and limit exposure to any single 
issuer to no more than 5%, except for United States Treasury and agency obligations. As of June 30, 2019, 
the PEBA – Insurance Benefits did not have any single issuers of debt that were not fully collateralized by 
the U.S. government. 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely impact the fair value of an 
investment. The State Treasurer manages these risks as permitted by investment policy. There were no 
foreign investments at year end for either SCRHITF or SCLTDITF. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Deposits, Investments and Securities Lending Transactions (Continued) 

During the year, the following amounts earned from deposits or investments were included in investment 
earnings: 

PEBA, Insurance 

Benefits

SCRHITF SCLTDITF

Interest earned from deposits 13,639,269$        -$                -$              

Interest earned from investments -                         32,089,583    1,134,376    

Net realized gain/(loss) on investments -                         1,099,730      (15,259)        

Net unrealized gain from change in

   value of investments -                         44,942,337    1,837,581    

Net unrealized gain/(loss) from change in

   value of securities lending collateral -                         (449,165)        16,217          

Interest and investment earnings 13,639,269$        77,682,485$ 2,972,915$ 

OPEB Trust Funds

The following schedule reconciles the OPEB Trust Funds investments and deposits as reported in the 
statement of net positions to disclosures included in this note. 

Note Note

Statements Disclosure Statements Disclosure

Held by State Treasurer:

Cash and cash equivalents 78,337,392$        -$                        2,590,470$    -$                       

Invested securities lending 

collateral 29,394,993          29,394,993            -                   -                         

Investments 1,235,156,250    -                           36,424,300    -                         

Deposits -                         3,367,392              -                   110,470                

Specifically identified 

investments -                         1,310,126,250      -                   38,904,300          

Total 1,342,888,635$  1,342,888,635$   39,014,770$  39,014,770$        

SCRHITF SCLTDITF
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Deposits, Investments and Securities Lending Transactions (Continued) 

Fair Value Measurements 
The OPEB Trusts categorize fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by GASB 

Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. The valuation technique uses a three level 

hierarchy of inputs to measure the fair value of the asset and gives the highest priority to unadjusted 

quoted prices in active markets (level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs 

(level 3 measurements). These classifications are summarized as follows: 

Level 1 Inputs: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that a 

reporting entity can access at the measurement date. 

Level 2 Inputs: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for an asset 
or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

Level 3 Inputs: Unobservable inputs for an asset or liability. 

In the event that inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability fall into different levels in 

the fair value hierarchy, the overall level of the fair value hierarchy in its entirety is determined based 

on the lowest level input that is significant to the entire valuation. These levels are not necessarily an 

indication of risk but are based upon the pricing transparency of the investment. In determining the 

appropriate levels, the OPEB Trusts performed a detailed analysis of the assets and liabilities that are 

subject to GASB Statement No. 72. 

Fair value of certain investments that do not have a readily determinable fair value is established using 

net asset value (or its equivalent) as a practical expedient. These investments are not categorized 

according to the fair value hierarchy. The Trusts did not have any such investments at June 30, 2019. 

Investments classified according to the fair value hierarchy are valued according to pricing policy 
established by the OPEB Trusts’ custodian bank. Pricing is based primarily on prices from several third-
party vendors or other specified alternative sources which are considered to be reliable. Where available, 
the custodian bank uses more than one vendor for securities of each asset type, class or issue. The price 
received from a primary source is used in valuation unless a tolerance check, or price challenge, results in 
the use of a price from a secondary vendor. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Deposits, Investments and Securities Lending Transactions (Continued) 

The OPEB Trusts have the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2019: 

Investments by Fair Value 

Level At 6/30/2019

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices 

in Active 

Markets for 

Identical Assets 

(Level 1)

Significant 

Other 

Observable 

Inputs (Level 2)

Significant 

Unobservable 

Inputs       

(Level 3)

Collateralized mortgage-

backed obligations $        87,793,307 $                     - $       8 7,793,307 $                   -

U.S. government and 

agency securities        7 48,799,981       5 95,442,438 $     153,357,543                      -

Repurchase agreement           77,450,000          77,450,000                          -                      -

Corporate bonds        3 26,982,534                         -         326,982,534                      -

Financial paper        1 08,004,728                         -        1 08,004,728                      -

Total $ 1 ,349,030,550 $    672,892,438 $     676,138,112 $                   -

 

Securities Lending Transactions 
Through its custodial agent, the OPEB Trusts participates in a securities lending program whereby 
securities are loaned for generating additional income. The OPEB Trusts lend securities from its 
investment portfolio on a collateralized basis to third parties, primarily financial institutions. The market 
value of the required collateral must initially meet or exceed 102% of the market value of the securities 
loaned, providing a margin against a decline in the market value of the collateral, and requires additional 
collateral if the collateral value falls below 100%. 

No restrictions are held on the amount of securities that may be loaned. The types of securities available 
for loan during the year ended June 30, 2019 included U.S. Government securities and agencies, corporate 
and convertible bonds. The contractual agreement with the OPEB Trusts’ custodial bank provides 
indemnification in the event the borrower fails to pay the OPEB Trusts income distribution by the 
securities’ issuers while the securities are on loan. Cash and U.S. Government securities were received as 
collateral for these loans. The OPEB Trusts cannot pledge or sell collateral securities without a borrower 
default. The OPEB Trusts invest cash collateral received; accordingly, investments made with cash 
collateral appear as an asset. A corresponding liability is recorded as the OPEB Trusts must return the 
cash collateral to the borrower upon the expiration of the loan. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Deposits, Investments and Securities Lending Transactions (Continued) 

At June 30, 2019, the fair value of securities on loan and invested in cash collateral for SCRHITF was 
$29,394,993. Securities lending obligations at June 30, 2019 for the SCRHITF was $30,002,704 with the 
unrealized loss in invested cash collateral recorded in the Statement of Changes in Plan Net Position 
included in investment income. 

With regard to custodial credit risk, the SCRHITF’s cash collateral invested is held by the custodial bank 
and is insured. All securities loaned can be terminated on demand by either the OPEB Trusts or the 
borrower. At year-end the average number of days the loans were outstanding was one day and the 
average weighted maturity of investments made with cash collateral was one day for SCRHITF. At June 
30, 2019, there had been no losses resulting from borrower defaults and both OPEB Trusts had no credit 
risk exposure to borrowers because the amounts the OPEB Trusts owed the borrowers exceeded the 
amounts the borrowers owed the OPEB Trusts. 

The following table presents the fair value of the underlying securities and the total collateral received for 
securities on loan at June 30, 2019 for the SCRHITF: 

SCRHITF

Securities lent for cash collateral:

U.S. government securities $     25,428,528

Corporate bonds           3,966,465

Total securities lent for cash collateral $     29,394,993

Cash collateral invested as follows:

Repurchase agreements $     30,002,704

U.S. government securities                       - 

Total for cash collateral invested $     30,002,704
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

4. Other Post Employment Benefits – Plan Reporting in Accordance with GASB 74 

The Other Post-Employment Benefits Trust Funds (OPEB Trusts), collectively refers to the South Carolina 
Retiree Health Insurance Trust Fund (SCRHITF) and the South Carolina Long-Term Disability Insurance Trust 
Fund (SCLTDITF), were established by the State of South Carolina as Act 195, which became effective on 
May 2008. The SCRHITF was created to fund and account for the employer costs of the State’s retiree 
health and dental plans. The SCLTDITF was created to fund and account for the employer costs of the 
State’s Basic Long-Term Disability Income Benefit Plan. 

In accordance with Act 195, the OPEB Trusts are administered by the PEBA, Insurance Benefits and the State 
Treasurer is the custodian of the funds held in trust. The Board of Directors of PEBA has been designated 
as the Trustee. 

The OPEB Trusts are cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plans. Article 5 of the State Code of 
Laws defines the two plans and authorizes the Trustee to at any time adjust the plans, including its benefits 
and contributions, as necessary to insure the fiscal stability of the plans. 

In accordance with the South Carolina Code of Laws and the annual Appropriations Act, the State provides 
post-employment health and dental and long-term disability benefits to retired State and school district 
employees and their covered dependents. PEBA, Insurance Benefits contributes to the SCRHITF and the 
SCLTDITF, cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit postemployment healthcare, and long-term 
disability plans administered by the PEBA, Insurance Benefits, a part of the PEBA. 

Generally, retirees are eligible for the health and dental benefits if they have established at least ten years 
of retirement service credit. For new hires beginning employment May 2, 2008 and after, retirees are 
eligible for benefits if they have established 25 years of service for 100% employer funding and 15-24 years 
of service for 50% employer funding. 

Benefits become effective when the former employee retires under a State retirement system. Basic Long-
Term Disability (BLTD) benefits are provided to active state, public school district, and participating local 
government employees approved for disability. 

Funding Policies 
Section 1-11-710 of the South Carolina Code of Laws of 1976, as amended, requires these postemployment 
and long-term disability benefits to be funded through annual appropriations by the General Assembly for 
active employees to the PEBA, Insurance Benefits and participating retirees to PEBA, except for the portion 
funded through the pension surcharge and provided from the other applicable sources of the PEBA, 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Other Post Employment Benefits – Plan Reporting in Accordance with GASB 74 (continued) 

Insurance Benefits, for its active employees who are not funded by State General Fund appropriations 
participating employers are mandated by State statute to contribute at a rate assessed each year by the 
Office of the State Budget, 6.05% of covered payroll for year ended June 30, 2019. At the beginning of the 
fiscal year, the Department of Administration Executive Budget Office sets annually the employer 
contribution rate based on a pay-as-you-go basis. The South Carolina Retirement System collects the 
monthly surcharge for all employers except Local Subdivisions, who do not participate in the SCRHITF, and 
remits it directly to the SCRHITF. PEBA, Insurance Benefits paid approximately $418,461 for the payroll 
surcharge for year ended June 30, 2019. Other sources of funding for the SCRHITF include mandatory 
transfers of accumulated PEBA, Insurance Benefits’ reserves and income generated from investments. For 
the year ended June 30, 2019, PEBA, Insurance Benefits contributed $100,803,193 to the SCRHITF. 

BLTD benefits are funded through a person’s premium charged to State agencies, public school districts and 
other participating local governments. The monthly premium per active employee paid to PEBA, Insurance 
Benefits was $3.22 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. The SCLTDITF premium is billed monthly by 
PEBA, Insurance Benefits and transferred monthly to the SCLTDITF. It is also funded through investment 
income. 

Contributions, State appropriations and mandatory transfers for the year ended June 30, 2019 were as 
follows: 

SCRHITF SCLTDITF

Contributions 533,327,818$            7,532,690$                 

Transfer from IBNR reserves 100,803,193              -                                

State appropriations 2,375,300                   -                                

636,506,311$            7,532,690$                 

Administrative costs of the OPEB Trusts are paid from plan assets. 

Eligible participants consisted of the following at June 30, 2018, the date of the latest actuarial valuation: 

SCRHITF SCLTDITF

Active participants 179,818           189,304    

Retired participants 94,814             956            

Vested terminated participants 1,258                -             

Total participants 275,890           190,260    

Number of participating employers 249 724
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Valuation Date:   June  30,  2018  census data  
Actuarial  Cost M ethod:  Entry Age Normal  
Inflation:    2.25%  
Investment  Rate of  Return:  2.75%, net  of  OPEB Plan  investment  expense;  including  inflation  
Single Discount  Rate:   3.13%  as of  June  30,  2019  
Demographic Ass umptions:  Based  on  the experience  study performed  for  the  South  Carolina Retirement  

Systems for  the  5-year period ending  June 30, 2015  
Health  Care Trend  Rate:  Initial trend  starting at  6.40%  and  gradually decreasing to an  ultimate trend  

rate of  4.15% over a period  of  15  years  
Aging Factors:    Based  on plan  specific  experience  
Participation  Assumption:  79%  for  retirees  that  are  eligible for  Funded  Premiums  

59%  for  retirees  that  are  eligible for  Partially Funded  Premiums  
20%  for  retirees  that  are  eligible for  Non-Funded  Premiums  

Notes:     The long-term  rate of  return  assumption  changed  from  4.00% to  2.75%  per  
year.  The discount rate changed  from  3.62%  as  of  June 30, 2018  to 3.13%  as 
of  June  30,  2019.  Minor updates were made to  the  healthcare  trend  rate  
assumption.  

 

SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Other Post Employment Benefits – Plan Reporting in Accordance with GASB 74 (continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions and Methods 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions 
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about 
future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Actuarially determined amounts are subject 
to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made 
about the future. The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information 
following the notes to the financial statements, present multi-year trend information about whether the 
actuarial values of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued 
liabilities for benefits. 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plans (as understood 
by the employer and plan participants) and include the types of benefits provided at the time the valuation 
and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. 
The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of 
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-
term perspective of the calculations. 

Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation for SCRHITF: 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Other Post Employment Benefits – Plan Reporting in Accordance with GASB 74 (continued) 

Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation for SCLTDITF: 
 

Valuation Date:   June  30,  2018  census data  
Actuarial  Cost M ethod:  Entry Age Normal  
Inflation:    2.25%  
Investment  Rate of  Return:  3.00%, net  of  Plan  investment  expense;  including  inflation  
Single Discount  Rate:   3.04%  as of  June  30,  2019  
Salary, Termination,  and  Based  on the experience study performed  for  the South  Carolina Retirement   
Retirement  Rates:  Systems for  the  5-year period ending  June 30, 2015  
Disability Incidence:  The  disability  incidence  rates  used  in  the  valuation are  based  on  the  rates  

developed f or  the South  Carolina Retirement  Systems pension p lans  
Disability Recovery:  For participants  in  payment,  1987 CGDT Group  Disability;  for active  

employees,  60% were  assumed to recover  after  the first  year  and  92%  were  
assumed to  recover  after  the first  two years  

Offsets:  40%  are  assumed  to be eligible  for  Social Security benefits; assumed  
percentage who will be  eligible for  a  pension  plan  offset  varies based  on 
employee  group  

Expenses:    The investment  return  assumption is net of t he investment expenses;  
 Third  party administrative expenses are included  in  the benefit  projections;  
Notes:     The long-term  rate of  return  assumption  changed  from  4.00%  to  3.00% per  

year.  The Single Discount  Rate changed  from 3.91%  as of  June  30, 2018  to  
3.04%  as of  June  30,  2019  

 
The following table represents the components of the net OPEB liability as of June 30, 2019: 

OPEB Trust Total OPEB Liability

Plan Fiduciary Net 

Position

Net OPEB 

Liability

Plan Fiduciary 

Net Position as 

a % of Total 

OPEB Liability

SCRHITF $      16,516,264,617 $        1,394,740,049 $ 1 5,121,524,568 8.44%

SCLTDITF $              40,743,755 $              38,775,500 $            1,968,255 95.17%

Roll Forward Disclosure 

The actuarial valuation for both the SCRHITF and SCLTDITF were performed as of June 30, 2018. Update 
procedures were used to roll forward the total OPEB liability to June 30, 2019. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Other Post Employment Benefits – Plan Reporting in Accordance with GASB 74 (continued) 

Single Discount Rate 

The Single Discount Rate of 3.13% was used to measure the total OPEB liability for the SCRHITF. The 
accounting policy for this plan is to set the Single Discount Rate equal to the prevailing municipal bond rate. 
The Fidelity “20-Year Municipal GO AA Index” for fixed-income municipal bonds with 20 years to maturity 
that include only federal tax-exempt municipal bonds was used for reporting as of June 30, 2019. Due to 
the plan’s investment and funding policies, the difference between a blended discount rate and the 
municipal bond rate would be less than several basis points (several hundredths of one percent). In 
addition, the plan intends to use a Single Discount Rate for GASB 74 purposes which is equal to the 
municipal bond rate. 

A Single Discount Rate of 3.04% was used to measure the total OPEB liability for the SCLTDITF. This Single 
Discount Rate was based on an expected rate of return on plan investments of 3.00% and a municipal bond 
rate 3.13%. The projection of cash flows to determine this Single Discount Rate assumed that employer 
contributions will remain $38.64 per year for each covered active employee. Based on these assumptions, 
the plan’s Fiduciary Net Position and future contributions were sufficient to finance the benefit payments 
through the year 2039. As a result, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied 
to project benefit payments through the year 2039, and the municipal bond rate was applied to all benefit 
payments after that date. 

Long-term Expected Rate of Return 

Asset Class

SCRHITF

Target Asset 

Allocation

Long-Term 

Expected 

Real Rate of 

Return

Allocation-

Weighted Long-

Term Expected Real 

Rate of Return

SCLTDITF

Long-Term 

Expected 

Real Rate of 

Return

Allocation-

Weighted Long-

Term Expected Real 

Rate of Return

U.S. Domestic Fixed 

Income 80.00% 0.60% 0.48% 0.95% 0.76%

Cash 20.00% 0.10% 0.02% 0.51% 0.10%

Total 100.00% 0.50% 0.86%

Expected Inflation 2.25% 2.25%

Total Return 2.75% 3.11%

Investment Return Assumption 2.75% 3.00%

For the SCRHITF and the SCLTDITF, the annual money-weighted rate of return on the plan investments were 
6.77% and 8.13%, respectively. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Other Post Employment Benefits – Plan Reporting in Accordance with GASB 74 (continued) 

Sensitivity Analysis 

The following table presents the SCRHITF’s net OPEB liability calculated using a Single Discount Rate of 
3.13%, as well as what the plan’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a Single Discount 
Rate that is one percent lower or one percent higher: 

1% Decrease

2.13%

Current

Discount Rate

3.13%

1% Increase

4.13%

SCRHITF Net OPEB Liability $ 1 7,926,382,275 $ 1 5,121,524,568 $ 1 2,870,509,916

Regarding the sensitivity of the SCRHITF’s net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates, 
the following table presents the plan’s net OPEB liability, calculated using the assumed trend rates as well 
as what the plan’s net OPEB liability would be if were calculated using a trend rate that is one percent lower 
or one percent higher: 

1% Decrease Cost Trend Rate 1% Increase

SCRHITF Net OPEB Liability 12,340,779,463$  15,121,524,568$  18,742,876,160$  

The following table presents the SCLTDITF’s net OPEB liability calculated using a Single Discount Rate of 
3.04%, as well as what the plan’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a Single Discount 
Rate that is one percent lower or one percent higher: 

1% Decrease

2.04%

Current

Discount Rate

3.04%

1% Increase

4.04%

SCLTDITF Net OPEB Liability $            3,385,614 $            1,968,255 $                562,241
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Other Post Employment Benefits – Employer Reporting in Accordance with GASB 75 

PEBA, Insurance Benefits’ is a participant in the cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan of the 
OPEB SCRHITF and SCLTDITF. The following disclosures are to address PEBA, Insurance Benefits’ 
proportionate share of the Net OPEB Liability with a measurement date of June 30, 2018. Please note that 
PEBA Insurance Benefits’ proportionate share of the Net OPEB Liability for the SCLTDITF is insignificant and 
has not been included in the financial statements or note disclosures. 

Actuarial Assumptions and Methods 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions 
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about 
future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Actuarially determined amounts are subject 
to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made 
about the future. 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plans (as understood 
by the employer and plan participants) and include the types of benefits provided at the time the valuation 
and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. 
The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of 
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-
term perspective of the calculations. 

Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation for SCRHITF: 

Valuation Date: June 30, 2018 
Actuarial Cost Method: Entry Age Normal 
Inflation: 2.25% 
Investment Rate of Return: 4.00, net of OPEB Plan investment expense; including inflation 
Single Discount Rate: 3.62% as of June 30, 2018 
Demographic Assumptions: Based on the experience study performed for the South Carolina Retirement 

Systems for the 5-year period ending June 30, 2015 
Health Care Trend Rate: Initial trend starting at 6.75% and gradually decreasing to an ultimate trend 

rate of 4.15% over a period of 14 years 
Participation Assumptions: 79% participation for retirees who are eligible for Funded Premiums 

59% participation for retirees who are eligible for Partial Funded Premiums 
20% participation for retirees who are eligible for Non-Funded Premiums 

Notes: The discount rate changed from 3.56% as of June 30, 2017 to 3.62% as of 
June 30, 2018 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Other Post Employment Benefits – Employer Reporting in Accordance with GASB 75 (continued) 

Single Discount Rate 

The Single Discount Rate of 3.62% was used to measure the total OPEB liability for the SCRHITF. The 
accounting policy for this plan is to set the Single Discount Rate equal to the prevailing municipal bond rate. 
The Fidelity “20-Year Municipal GO AA Index” for fixed-income municipal bonds with 20 years to maturity 
that include only federal tax-exempt municipal bonds was used for reporting as of June 30, 2018. Due to 
the plan’s investment and funding policies, the difference between a blended discount rate and the 
municipal bond rate would be less than several basis points (several hundredths of one percent). 

Long-term Expected Rate of Return 

Asset Class

Target Asset 

Allocation

Long-Term 

Expected Real 

Rate of Return

Allocation-

Weighted Long-

Term Expected Real 

Rate of Return

U.S. Domestic Fixed Income 80.00% 2.09% 1.67%

Cash 20.00% 0.84% 0.17%

Total 100.00% 1.84%

Expected Inflation 2.25%

Total Return 4.09%

Investment Return Assumption 4.00%

For the SCRHITF, the annual money-weighted rate of return on the plan investments was 0.27%. 

Net OPEB Liability 
The allocation of each employer’s proportionate share of the collective Net OPEB Liability (NOL) and 
collective OPEB Expense for SCRHITF was determined using the employer’s payroll-related contributions 
over the measurement period. 

At June 30, 2019, PEBA, Insurance Benefits reported a liability for the SCRHITF of $11,158,027 for its 
proportionate share of PEBA, Insurance Benefits NOL. At June 30, 2019, PEBA’s proportion was 0.176046%, 
of which 44.73% was proportioned to PEBA, Insurance Benefits representing contributions of $373,470. 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 PEBA, Insurance Benefits recognized OPEB expense of $638,240. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Other Post Employment Benefits – Employer Reporting in Accordance with GASB 75 (continued) 

Reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the SCRHITF are as 
follows: 

Deferred Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred Inflows of 

Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience $                        167,152 $                         3 ,888

Net difference between projected and actual 

earnings on OPEB plan investments                             4 2,784                                 -

Assumption changes                                    -                        908,600

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date                           418,462                                 -

Net difference in change proportional share                                    -                          8 6,615

Total $                        628,398 $                     999,103

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date of $418,462 reported as deferred outflows of 
resources will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2020. 

The following schedule reflects the amortization of the net balance of remaining deferred outflows / 
(inflows) of resources at June 30, 2019 that will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Measurement Period Ending June 30,

2020 (147,187)$      

2021 (147,187)$      

2022 (147,187)$      

2023 (151,768)        

2024 (159,028)        

Thereafter (36,810)           

Net Balance of Deferred Outflows / (Inflows) of Resources (789,167)$      
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Other Post Employment Benefits – Employer Reporting in Accordance with GASB 75 (continued) 

Sensitivity Analysis 

The following table presents PEBA, Insurance Benefits’ net OPEB liability calculated using a Single Discount 
Rate of 3.62%, as well as what PEBA, Insurance Benefits’ net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated 
using a Single Discount Rate that is one percent lower or one percent higher: 

1% Decrease

2.62%

Current

Discount Rate

3.62%

1% Increase

4.62%

PEBA, Insurance Benefits' proportionate

share of the net OPEB liability $          13,145,228 $          11,158,027 $            9,556,186

Regarding the sensitivity of PEBA – Insurance Benefit’s net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost 
trend rates, the following table presents PEBA, Insurance Benefits’ net OPEB liability, calculated using the 
assumed trend rates as well as what the plan’s net OPEB liability would be if were calculated using a trend 
rate that is one percent lower or one percent higher: 

1% Decrease

Current Healthcare

Cost Trend Rate 1% Increase

PEBA, Insurance Benefits' proportionate

share of the net OPEB liability $            9,181,255 $          11,158,027 $          13,713,627

53 

Other Employee Benefits 

In accordance with the South Carolina Code of Laws and the annual Appropriation Act, the State of South 
Carolina provides certain healthcare, dental and life insurance benefits to all permanent full-time and 
certain permanent part-time employees of PEBA, Insurance Benefits. These benefits are provided on a 
reimbursement basis by the employer agency based on rates established at the beginning of the service 
period by PEBA, Insurance Benefits within the PEBA. PEBA, Insurance Benefits recorded benefit expenses 
for these insurance benefits for active employees in the amount of $737,018 for the year ended June 30, 
2019. 



  
 

 
  

    
   

 
 

 

 

  
 

         

 
              

            
  

 
  

 
      

 
 

 
         
  

SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

5. Premiums Receivable 

PEBA, Insurance Benefits premiums receivable at June 30, 2019 consist of the following: 

State government (Note 10) $        584,352

Local government           6 93,705

Schools                1,220

Individuals           1 41,129

$     1,420,406

As of June 30, 2019, all of the receivables are considered by management to be collectible. No allowance 
for doubtful accounts has been recognized. In addition, as of June 30, 2019, no discounts have been applied 
to the receivables. 

6. Capital Assets 

The following summarizes PEBA, Insurance Benefits’ changes in capital assets for the year. 

Balance July 

1, 2018 Additions Deletions

Balance June 

30, 2019

Furniture and equipment 1,155,849$  94,234$       -$           1,250,083$      

Accumulated depreciation (1,094,957)   (97,135)       -             (1,192,092)       

Capital assets, net 60,892$        (2,901)$       -$           57,991$            

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2019 was $97,135. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

7. Lease Obligations 

The PEBA leases office space from CB Richard Ellis (CBRE) and the lease was renewed on July 1, 2018 for the 
period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2023. This lease is accounted for as an operating lease. PEBA, 
Insurance Benefits’ proportionate share of rental expense under these leases were calculated at 44% for 
the year ended June 30, 2019 using a weighted average of staff in the facility at the beginning of the fiscal 
year. The lease expense for PEBA, Insurance Benefits was $87,953 for the year ended June 30, 2019. The 
proportionate share percentage is updated near the end of each fiscal year and it was determined that the 
PEBA, Insurance Benefits proportionate share of the total lease expense for the year ending June 30, 2020 
will be 43%. The current calculated proportionate share of the future minimum lease payments due under 
this lease is as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, Total

2020 $          85,954

2021 $          85,954

2022 $          85,954

2023 $          85,954

Total $        343,816

 

8. Pension Plans 

The South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority (PEBA), created July 1, 2012 and governed by an 11-
member Board, is the state agency responsible for the administration and management of the various 
Retirement Systems and retirement programs of the state of South Carolina, including the State Optional 
Retirement Program and the S.C. Deferred Compensation Program, as well as the state’s employee 
insurance programs. As such, PEBA is responsible for administering the South Carolina Retirement Systems’ 
five defined benefit pension plans. The Retirement Funding and Administration Act of 2017, which became 
effective July 1, 2017, increased the employer and employee contribution rates, established a ceiling on the 
SCRS and PORS employee contribution rates, lowered the assumed rate of return, required a scheduled 
reduction of the funding periods, and addressed various governance issues including the assignment of the 
PEBA Board as custodian of the retirement trust funds and assignment of the RSIC and PEBA as cotrustees 
of the assets of the retirement trust funds. By law, the State Fiscal Accountability Authority (SFAA), which 
consists of five elected officials, also reviews certain PEBA Board decisions regarding the actuary of the 
Systems. 

55 



  
 

 
  

    
   

 
 

 

 

  
 

          
          

        
          

         
           

       
 

         
      

      
       

        
         

 
  

        
            

           
  

 
               

             
        

 
 

 
             

       
 

         
      

             
          

               
   

SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Pension Plans (continued) 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to 
pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Systems and additions 
to/deductions from the Systems fiduciary net position have been determined on the accrual basis of 
accounting as they are reported by the Systems in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP). For this purpose, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when 
incurred. Benefit and refund expenses are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms 
of the plan. Investments are reported at fair value. 

PEBA issues a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) containing financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the Systems’ Pension Trust Funds. The CAFR is publicly available through 
the Retirement Benefits’ link on PEBA’s website at www.peba.sc.gov, or a copy may be obtained by 
submitting a request to PEBA, 202 Arbor Lake Drive, Columbia, SC 29223. PEBA is considered a division of 
the primary government of the state of South Carolina and therefore, retirement trust fund financial 
information is also included in the comprehensive annual financial report of the state. 

Plan Descriptions 
The SCRS, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, was established effective July 1, 
1945, pursuant to the provision of Section 9-1-20 of the South Carolina Code of Laws for the purpose of 
providing retirement allowances and other benefits for employees of the state, its public school districts, 
and political subdivisions. 

The State Optional Retirement Program (State ORP) is a defined contribution plan that is offered as an 
alternative to certain newly hired state, public school, and higher education employees. State ORP 
participates direct the investment of their funds into a plan administered by one of four investment 
providers. 

Membership 
Membership requirements are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. A brief summary 
of the requirements under each system is presented below. 

SCRS – Generally, all employees of covered employers are required to participate in and contribute to the 
system as a condition of employment. This plan covers general employees and teachers and individuals 
newly elected to the South Carolina General Assembly beginning with the November 2012 general election.  
An employee member of the system with an effective date of membership prior to July 1, 2012, is a Class II 
member. An employee member of the system with an effective date of membership on or after July 1, 
2012, is a Class III member. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Pension Plans (continued) 

State ORP – As an alternative to membership in SCRS, newly hired state, public school, and higher education 
employees and individuals newly elected to the South Carolina General Assembly beginning with the 
November 2012 general election have the option to participate in the State ORP, which is defined 
contribution plan. State ORP participants direct the investment of their funds into a plan administered by 
one of four investment providers. PEBA assumes no liability for State ORP benefits. Rather, the benefits 
are the liability of the investment providers. For this reason, State ORP programs are not considered part 
of the retirement systems for financial statement purposes. Employee and Employer contributions to the 
State ORP are at the same rates as SCRS. A direct remittance is required from the employers to the 
member’s account with investment providers for the employee contribution (9.00%) and a portion of the 
employer contribution (5.00%). A direct remittance is also required to SCRS for the remaining portion of 
the employer contribution (9.41%) and an incidental death benefit contribution (0.15%), if applicable, which 
is retained by SCRS. 

Benefits 
Benefit terms are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. PEBA does not have the authority 
to establish or amend benefit terms without a legislative change in the code of laws. Key elements of the 
benefit calculation include the benefit multiplier, years of service, and average final compensation. A brief 
summary of the benefit terms for each system is presented below. 

SCRS - A Class Two member who has separated from service with at least five or more years of earned 
service is eligible for a monthly pension at age 65 or with 28 years credited service regardless of age. A 
member may elect early retirement with reduced pension benefits payable at age 55 with 25 years of 
service credit. A Class Three member who has separated from service with at least eight or more years of 
earned service is eligible for a monthly pension upon satisfying the Rule of 90 requirement that the total of 
the member’s age and the member’s creditable service equals at least 90 years. Both Class Two and Class 
Three members are eligible to receive a reduced deferred annuity at age 60 if they satisfy the five- or eight-
year earned service requirement, respectively. An incidental death benefit is also available to beneficiaries 
of active and retired members of employers who participate in the death benefit program. 

The annual retirement allowance of eligible retirees or their surviving annuitants is increased by the lesser 
of one percent or five hundred dollars every July 1. Only those annuitants in receipt of a benefit on July 1 
of the preceding year are eligible to receive the increase. Members who retire under the early retirement 
provisions at age 55 with 25 years of service are not eligible for the benefit adjustment until the second July 
1 after reaching age 60 or the second July 1 after the date they would have had 28 years of service credit 
had they not retired. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Pension Plans (continued) 

Contributions 
Contributions are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. If the scheduled employee and 
employer contributions provided in statute, or the rates last adopted by the board, are insufficient to 
maintain the amortization period set in statute, the board shall increase employer contribution rates as 
necessary. 

The Retirement System Funding and Administration Act establishes a ceiling on employee contribution 
rates at 9 percent. The employer contribution rates will continue to increase annually by 1 percent through 
July 1, 2022. The legislation’s ultimate scheduled employer rate is 18.56 percent. The amortization period 
is scheduled to be reduced one year for each of the next ten years to a twenty year amortization period. 

After June 30, 2027, if the most recent annual actuarial valuation of the Systems for funding purposes shows 
a ratio of the actuarial value of system assets to the actuarial accrued liability of the system (the funded 
ratio) that is equal to or greater than eighty-five percent, then the board, effective on the following July 1st, 
may decrease the then current contribution rates upon making a finding that the decrease will not result in 
a funded ratio of less than eighty-five percent. If contribution rates are decreased pursuant to this 
provision, and the most recent annual actuarial valuation of the system shows a funded ratio of less than 
eighty-five percent, then effective on the following July 1st, and annually thereafter as necessary, the board 
shall increase the then current contribution rates until a subsequent annual actuarial valuation of the 
system shows a funded ratio that is equal to or greater than eighty-five percent. 

Required employee contribution rates for fiscal year 2018-2019 are as follows: 
SCRS  
     Employee  Class II     9.00%  of earnable  compensation  
     Employee  Class III     9.00%  of earnable  compensation  

State ORP 
Employer Contribution 9.00% of earnable compensation 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Pension Plans (continued) 

Required employer contributions for fiscal year 2018-2019 are as follows: 
SCRS  
     Employer Class II     14.41%  of  earnable compensation  
     Employer Class III     14.41%  of  earnable compensation  
     Employer Incidental  Death  Benefit    0.15% of earnable  compensation  
 
State ORP  
     Employer Contribution    14.41%  of  earnable compensation (1)  
     Employer Incidental  Death  Benefit    0.15% of earnable  compensation  

(1) Of the employer contribution of 14.41% of earnable compensation, 5% of earnable compensation must 
be remitted by the employer directly to the State ORP vendor to be allocated to the member’s account 
with the remainder of the employer contribution remitted to SCRS. 

Actuarial Assumptions and Methods 
Actuarial valuations of the ongoing plan involve estimates of the reported amounts and assumptions about 
the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future 
employment, mortality, and future salary increases. Amounts determined regarding the net pension liability 
are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates 
are made about the future. South Carolina state statute requires that an actuarial experience study be 
completed at least once in each five-year period. An experience report on the Systems was most recently 
issued as of July 1, 2015. 

The June 30, 2018, total pension liability (TPL), net pension liability (NPL), and sensitivity information shown 
in this report were determined by our consulting actuary, Gabriel, Roeder, Smith and Company (GRS) and 
are based on an actuarial valuation performed as of July 1, 2017. The total pension liability was rolled-
forward from the valuation date to the plans’ fiscal year end, June 30, 2018, using generally accepted 
actuarial principles. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Pension Plans (continued) 

The following table provides a summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods used to calculate the 
TPL as of June 30, 2018. 

Actuarial  cost  method      Entry  age  normal  
Actuarial  assumptions:  
     Investment rate  of return     7.25%  
     Projected  salary increases     3.0%  to 12.5%  (varies by service)  
     Includes inflation  at     2.25%  
     Benefit  adjustments     lesser  of  1% or $500  annually  

The post-retiree mortality assumption is dependent upon the member’s job category and gender. The base 
mortality assumptions, the 2016 Public Retirees of South Carolina Mortality table (2016 PRSC), was 
developed using the Systems’ mortality experience. These base rates are adjusted for future improvement 
in mortality using published Scale AA projected from the year 2016. 

Assumptions used in the determination of the June 30, 2018, TPL are as follows. 

Former Job Class Males Females

Educators 2016 PRSC multiplied by 92% 2016 PRSC multiplied by 98%

General Employees and Members 
2016 PRSC multiplied by 100% 2016 PRSC multiplied by 111%

of the General Assembly

Public Safety and Firefighteres 2016 PRSC multiplied by 125% 2016 PRSC multiplied by 111%

 
 

Net Pension Liability 
At June 30, 2019, PEBA, Insurance Benefits reported a liability of $14,089,173 for its proportionate share of 
PEBA, Insurance Benefits net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018 
and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of that date. PEBA, Insurance Benefits’ proportion of the net pension liability was based on a 
projection of PEBA, Insurance Benefits’ long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the 
projected contributions of all participating entities, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2018, PEBA’s 
proportion was 0.142453%, of which 44.14% was proportioned to PEBA, Insurance Benefits representing 
contributions of $908,721. 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 PEBA, Insurance Benefits recognized pension expense of $1,970,109. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Pension Plans (continued) 

Reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are as 
follows: 

Deferred Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred Inflows of 

Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience 25,433$                          82,911$                       

Net difference between projected and actual 

earnings on pension plan investments 223,807                          -                                

Assumption changes 558,979                          

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 992,790                          -                                

Net difference in change of proportional share 873,202                          -                                

Total 2,674,211$                    82,911$                       

Pension Plans (continued) 

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date of $992,790 reported as deferred outflows of 
resources will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2020. 

The following schedule reflects the amortization of the net balance of remaining deferred outflows / 
(inflows) of resources at June 30, 2018 that will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Measurement Period Ending June 30,

2019 988,418$        

2020 620,681          

2021 683                  

2022 (11,272)           

Net Balance of Deferred Outflows / (Inflows) of Resources 1,598,510$    

Average remaining services lives of all employees provided with pensions as determined by SCRS at June 
30, 2018 was 4.080 years. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Pension Plans (continued) 

Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the SCRS total pension liability was 7.25%. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from participating employers in SCRS will 
be made based on the actuarially determined rates based on provisions in the South Carolina State Code of 
Laws. Based on those assumptions, fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of 
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine 
the total pension liability. 

Long-term Expected Rate of Return 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is based upon 30 year capital market 
assumptions. The long-term expected rate of returns represent assumptions developed using an arithmetic 
building block approach primarily based on consensus expectations and market based inputs. Expected 
returns are net of investment fees. 

The expected returns, along with the expected inflation rate, form the basis for the target asset allocation 
adopted at the beginning of the 2018 fiscal year. The long-term expected rate of return is produced by 
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target allocation percentage and adding expected 
inflation and is summarized in the table below. For actuarial purposes, the 7.25 percent assumed annual 
investment rate of return used in the calculation of the TPL includes a 5.00 percent real rate of return and 
a 2.25 percent inflation component. 
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Asset Class

Target Asset 

Allocation

Expected 

Arithmetic Real 

Rate of Return

Long-Term 

Expected 

Portfolio Real 

Rate of Return

Global Equity

Global Public Equity 33.00% 6.99% 2.31%

Private Equity 9.00% 8.73% 0.79%

Equity Options Strategies 5.00% 5.52% 0.28%

Real Assets

Real Estate (Private) 6.00% 3.54% 0.21%

Real Estate (REITs) 2.00% 5.46% 0.11%

Infrastructure 2.00% 5.09% 0.10%

Opportunistic

GTAA/Risk Parity 8.00% 3.75% 0.30%

Hedge Funds (non-PA) 2.00% 3.45% 0.07%

Other Opportunistic Strategies 3.00% 3.75% 0.11%

Diversified Credit

Mixed Credit 6.00% 3.05% 0.18%

Emerging Markets Debt 5.00% 3.94% 0.20%

Private Debt 7.00% 3.89% 0.27%

Conservative fixed income

Core Fixed Income 10.00% 0.94% 0.09%

Cash and Short Duration (Net) 2.00% 0.34% 0.01%

Total Expected Real Return 100.00% 5.03%

Inflation for Actuarial Purposes 2.25%

Total Expected Nominal Return 7.28%
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Pension Plans (continued) 

Sensitivity Analysis 
The following presents PEBA, Insurance Benefits’ proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated 
using the discount rate of 7.25%, as well as what PEBA, Insurance Benefits share of the net pension liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1% lower (6.25%) or 1% higher (8.25%) than the 
current rate. 

Current

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

6.25% 7.25% 8.25%

PEBA, Insurance Benefits proportionate

share of the net pension liability 18,003,346$         14,089,173$         11,290,913$         

9. Deferred Compensation Plan 

Several optional deferred compensation plans are available to State employees and employers of its 
political subdivisions. Some employees of PEBA, Insurance Benefits have elected to participate. 

The multiple-employer plans, created under Internal Revenue Code Sections 457, 401(k) and 403(b), are 
administered by third parties and are not included in the State’s CAFR. Compensation deferred under the 
plans is placed in trust for the contributing employee. The State has no liability for losses under the plans. 
Employees may withdraw the current value of their contributions when they terminate State employment 
or prior to termination if they meet requirements specified by the applicable plan. 

PEBA, Insurance Benefits did not contribute for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. 

10. Transactions with State Entities 

PEBA, Insurance Benefits has significant transactions with the State of South Carolina and various State 
agencies. Services received at no cost include payroll processing, disbursement processing and 
maintenance of certain accounting records from the Comptroller General; check preparation, banking and 
investment functions from the State Treasurer; and legal services from the Attorney General. 

Insurance services are provided for a fee to various State agencies and within the South Carolina Public 
Employee Benefit Authority. The fees are recorded as revenues in the financial statements for PEBA, 
Insurance Benefits. The insurance coverage provided consists of health, dental, vision, life and long-term 
disability. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Transactions with State Entities (continued) 

The following details the insurance premiums charged by PEBA, Insurance Benefits to other State agencies 
and divisions of the PEBA during the year ended June 30, 2019: 

ADJUTANT GENERAL'S OFFICE 2,746,223$           

AID TO SUBDIVISIONS 567,389                 

AIKEN TECHNICAL COLLEGE 1,070,971             

ATTORNEY GENERAL'S OFFICE 2,055,663             

CENTRAL CAROLINA TECH COLLEGE 2,114,886             

CLEMSON UNIVERSITY 47,878,815           

COASTAL CAROLINA UNIVERSITY 14,262,628           

COLLEGE OF CHARLESTON 13,470,712           

COMMISSION ON HIGHER EDUCATION 317,563                 

COMPTROLLER GENERALS OFFICE 228,966                 

CONFEDERATE RELIC ROOM AND MILITARY COMMISSION 50,776                   

DENMARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE 648,341                 

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION 5,989,241             

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 1,210,324             

DEPARTMENT OF ARCHIVES & HISTORY 365,015                 

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 10,487,608           

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL 26,333,346           

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 10,114,144           

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR, LICENSING AND REGULATION 3,518,013             

DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH 32,210,322           

DEPARTMENT OF PARKS RECREATION & TOURISM 3,636,522             

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 5,989,377             

DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES 30,441,082           

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 37,302,728           

DEPARTMENT ON AGING 188,242                 

FLORENCE-DARLINGTON TECHNICAL COLLEGE 2,460,335             

FORESTRY COMMISSION 3,321,930             

FRANCIS MARION UNIVERSITY 4,628,870             

GOVERNOR'S OFFICE - EXECUTIVE CONTROL OF STATE 133,045                 

GOVERNOR'S OFFICE - MANSIONS AND GROUNDS 53,646                   

GREENVILLE TECHNICAL COLLEGE 6,489,593             

HIGHER EDUCATION TUITION GRANTS COMMISSION 50,157                   

HORRY-GEORGETOWN TECH COLLEGE 3,408,960             

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES-CLERK 2,021,177             
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INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Transactions with State Entities (continued) 

JOHN DE LA HOWE SCHOOL 158,995                 

LANDER UNIVERSITY 3,903,157             

LEGISLATIVE AUDIT COUNCIL 172,959                 

LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL 367,226                 

LEGISLATIVE PRINTING & INFO TC 329,455                 

LT GOVERNORS OFFICE 190,998                 

MEDICAL UNIVERSITY OF S C 44,581,474           

MIDLANDS TECHNICAL COLLEGE 6,055,886             

MUHA-CHESTER 466,635                 

MUHA-FLORENCE 2,688,529             

MUHA-LANCASTER 1,709,107             

MUHA-MARION 833,535                 

NORTHEASTERN TECHNICAL COLLEGE 738,252                 

OFFICE OF REGULATORY STAFF 634,468                 

OFFICE OF STATE AUDITOR 447,225                 

OFFICE OF STATE INFRASTRUCTURE BANK 34,032                   

OFFICE OF THE INSPECTOR GENERAL 55,364                   

ORANGEBURG - CALHOUN TECHNICAL COLLEGE 1,585,956             

PATIENTS COMPENSATION FUND 42,157                   

PATRIOTS POINT DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 683,812                 

PIEDMONT TECHNICAL COLLEGE 2,476,082             

PROCUREMENT REVIEW PANEL 6,871                      

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 367,568                 

RETIREMENT SYSTEM INVESTMENT COMMISSION 437,512                 

REVENUE AND FISCAL AFFAIRS OFFICE 758,448                 

S C ARTS COMMISSION 130,962                 

S C DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 371,377                 

S C DEPARTMENT OF EMPLOYMENT AND WORKFORCE 4,886,715             

S C DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE 715,886                 

S C DEPARTMENT OF MOTOR VEHICLES 8,879,189             

S C DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 7,435,635             

S C DEPARTMENT OF PROBATION PAROLE & PARDON SERV 5,640,620             

S C EDUCATION OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 43,651                   

S C EDUCATIONAL TELEVISION COMM 1,174,631             
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Transactions with State Entities (continued) 

S C HUMAN AFFAIRS COMMISSION 254,679                 

S C JOBS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 15,936                   

S C SCHOOL FOR THE DEAF & BLIND 3,002,501              

S C STATE LIBRARY 334,502                 

S C STATE SENATE - CLERICAL 1,450,276              

S C STATE UNIVERSITY 4,271,840              

S C WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION 509,656                 

S.C. DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY 12,022,892            

SC ADMINISTRATIVE LAW COURT 349,210                 

SC COMMISSION FOR THE BLIND 668,587                 

SC COMMISSION ON INDIGENT DEFENSE 565,684                 

SC COMMISSION ON PROSECUTION COORDINATION 410,236                 

SC DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 1,207,394              

SC DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 38,276,476            

SC DEPARTMENT OF JUVENILE JUSTICE 9,777,422              

SC DEPT OF ALCOHOL & OTHER DRUG ABUSE SERVICES 350,457                 

SC DEPT OF DISABILITIES & SPECIAL NEEDS 11,314,609            

SC PEBA BCBS 5,881                      

SC RURAL INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 76,767                   

SC STATE HOUSING FINANCE & DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 1,070,908              

SEA GRANT CONSORTIUM 130,674                 

SECRETARY OF STATE 258,943                 

SOUTH CAROLINA AERONAUTICS COMMISSION 135,154                 

SOUTH CAROLINA CONSERVATION BANK 3,070                      

SOUTH CAROLINA CRIMINAL JUSTICE ACADEMY 1,072,491              

SOUTH CAROLINA JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT 5,217,839              

SOUTH CAROLINA MUSEUM COMMISSION 336,778                 

SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY 2,339,178              

SPARTANBURG COMMUNITY COLLEGE 3,169,054              

STATE ACCIDENT FUND 533,272                 

STATE BOARD FOR TECHNICAL & COMPREHENSIVE EDUC 1,202,723              

STATE BOARD OF FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 416,098                 

STATE COMMISSION FOR MINORITY AFFAIRS 80,072                   
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& 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Transactions with State Entities (continued) 

STATE ELECTION COMMISSION 222,237                 

STATE ETHICS COMMISSION 82,931                   

STATE FISCAL ACCOUNTABILITY AUTHORITY 1,151,811             

STATE LAW ENFORCEMENT DIVISION 5,603,368             

STATE TREASURER 640,782                 

TECHNICAL COLLEGE OF LOW COUNTRY 1,117,630             

THE CITADEL 6,100,614             

TRI COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE 3,613,829             

TRIDENT TECHNICAL COLLEGE 5,961,103             

UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA 68,053,850           

VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION 9,429,991             

WIL LOU GRAY OPP SCHOOL 566,079                 

WILLIAMSBURG TECH COLLEGE 605,455                 

WINTHROP UNIVERSITY 7,587,220             

YORK TECHNICAL COLLEGE 2,614,970             

Total insurance premiums 588,954,108$      

PEBA, Insurance Benefits had other financial transactions with various State agencies during the fiscal year. 
Significant payments were made to other Divisions (Funds) of the State for retirement and insurance plans 
contributions, vehicle rental, printing, telephone, interagency mail, data processing services, purchasing, 
record maintenance, internal audit, personnel services, unemployment and workers’ compensation 
coverage for employees. 

The identifiable amounts of 2019 expenses applicable to related party transactions are as follows: 

South Carolina Retirement Division 1,405,371$    

South Carolina State Accident Fund 259                  

South Carolina Department of Employment and Workforce 1,943               

1,407,573$    

A significant portion of PEBA, Insurance Benefits total insurance premium revenue is for insurance 
premiums charged to other state agencies and division of the PEBA. Premiums owed from these entities at 
June 30, 2019 are as follows: 
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OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Transactions with State Entities (continued) 

ADJUTANT GENERAL'S OFFICE 33,852$                 

DENMARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE 69,133                   

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION 7,052                      

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 196                         

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 2,133                      

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL 802                         

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 1,445                      

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR, LICENSING AND REGULATION 979                         

DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH 106,979                 

DEPARTMENT OF PARKS RECREATION & TOURISM 57,562                   

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 16,367                   

DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES 57,714                   

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 5,314                      

DEPARTMENT ON AGING 5,361                      

FORESTRY COMMISSION 2,114                      

JOHN DE LA HOWE SCHOOL 490                         

LEGISLATIVE AUDIT COUNCIL 439                         

LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL 76                           

LEGISLATIVE PRINTING & INFO TC 296                         

LT GOVERNORS OFFICE 9,954                      

OFFICE OF STATE INFRASTRUCTURE BANK 210                         

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 150                         

RETIREMENT SYSTEM INVESTMENT COMMISSION 210                         

REVENUE AND FISCAL AFFAIRS OFFICE 4                             

SC DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 9,782                      

SC DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 34,373                   

SC DEPARTMENT OF PROBATION PAROLE & PARDON SERV 176                         

SC EDUCATIONAL TELEVISION COMM 185                         

SC HUMAN AFFAIRS COMMISSION 19                           

SC SCHOOL FOR THE DEAF & BLIND 2,083                      

SC WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION 278                         

SC DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY 5,357                      

SC ADMINISTRATIVE LAW COURT 4,073                      

SC COMMISSION ON INDIGENT DEFENSE 8,297                      
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Transactions with State Entities (continued) 

SC DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 14,506                   

SC DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 27,207                   

SC DEPARTMENT OF JUVENILE JUSTICE 10,084                   

SC DEPT OF ALCOHOL & OTHER DRUG ABUSE SERVICES 12,750                   

SC DEPT OF DISABILITIES & SPECIAL NEEDS 40,661                   

SC PEBA BCBS 22,072                   

SC AERONAUTICS COMMISSION 3,031                      

SC CRIMINAL JUSTICE ACADEMY 420                         

SC JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT 4,342                      

SC MUSEUM COMMISSION 886                         

SC PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY 1,462                      

SEA GRANT CONSORTIUM 272                         

SECRETARY OF STATE 1,368                      

STATE ACCIDENT FUND 544                         

STATE BOARD FOR TECHNICAL & COMPREHENSIVE EDUC 59                           

STATE ELECTION COMMISSION 11                           

STATE FISCAL ACCOUNTABILITY AUTHORITY 498                         

STATE LAW ENFORCEMENT DIVISION 384                         

VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION 265                         

YORK TECHNICAL COLLEGE 75                           

Total premiums owed 584,352$               

11. Contingencies 

By the nature of its operations and responsibilities as an insurer, PEBA, Insurance Benefits has been named 
in a number of lawsuits, many of which are pending. A provision has been made in the financial statements 
for the payment of routine insurance claims. Management is not aware of any other claims that, in their 
opinion, would have a material effect on the financial statements; therefore, no liability has been recorded. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

12. Risk Management/Reinsurance 

PEBA Insurance Benefits is exposed to various risks of loss and maintains State or commercial insurance 
coverage for each of those risks except for certain types of risks for which it is self-insured (these risks are 
further described herein). Management believes such coverage is sufficient to preclude any significant 
uninsured losses for the covered risks. There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from 
coverage in the prior year. Settled claims have not exceeded this coverage in any of the past three years. 

PEBA, Insurance Benefits pays insurance premiums to itself and certain other State agencies and 
commercial insurers to cover risks that may occur in normal operations. The insurers promise to pay to or 
on behalf of the insured for covered economic losses sustained during the policy period in accord with 
insurance policy and benefit program limits. 

State management believes it is more economical to manage certain risks internally and set aside assets for 
claim settlement.  Several State funds accumulate assets and the State itself assumes substantially all risks 
for the following: 

1. Claims of State employees for unemployment compensation benefits (Department of Employment 
and Workforce); 

2. Claims of covered employees for workers’ compensation benefits for job-related illnesses of injuries 
(State Accident Fund); 

3. Claims of covered public employees for health and dental insurance benefits (PEBA, Insurance 
Benefits); and 

4. Claims of covered property damage, theft, collision (automobile), liability, and general tort 
(Insurance Reserve Fund). 

Employees elect health coverage through the State Health Plan or a fully funded health plan if available. 
The State Health Plan offered by PEBA, Insurance Benefits is a self-insured product. State agencies and 
other governmental entities in South Carolina are the primary participants in PEBA, Insurance Benefits. 

PEBA, Insurance Benefits obtains coverage of up to $750,000 per loss through a commercial carrier for 
employee fidelity bond insurance for all employees for losses arising from theft or misappropriation. PEBA, 
Insurance Benefits has recorded insurance premium expense regarding its internal operations in the 
applicable administrative expense categories. 

PEBA, Insurance Benefits has not transferred the portion of the risk of loss related to insurance policy 
deductibles and limits. Because information at June 30, 2019 did not indicate that an asset had been 
impaired or a liability had been incurred, no actual or estimated claims loss expense or related liability has 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Risk Management/Reinsurance (Continued) 

been reported at June 30, 2019. A liability of claims must be reported only if information prior to issuance 
of the financial statements indicates that it is probably that an asset has been impaired or a liability has 
been incurred on or before June 30, 2019 and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. 

PEBA, Insurance Benefits self-insures health and dental insurance for all participating governmental 
employees, including those of PEBA, Insurance Benefits. PEBA, Insurance Benefits also offers a fully insured 
insurance product, Tricare Supplement Plan to qualifying members that elect this coverage. The basic long-
term disability product is a self-insured product managed through the SCLTDITF. In addition a supplemental 
long-term disability product is available as a fully insured product. Dental Plus, Vision and various Life 
products offered are fully insured products. 

PEBA, Insurance Benefits has not had any claims exceed coverage in the past three years. 

The schedule below presents PEBA, Insurance Benefits changes in claims liabilities for the past two years. 

2019 2018

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at beginning 

of the fiscal year 246,198$     222,617$     

Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses:

Provision for insured events of the current fiscal year 2,628,676    2,460,331    

Increases in provision for insured events of prior fiscal years 21,895          25,845          

Total incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses 2,650,571    2,486,176    

Payments:

Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to

insured events of the current fiscal year 2,604,060    2,436,750    

Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to 

insured events of prior fiscal years 21,895          25,845          

Total Payments 2,625,955    2,462,595    

Total unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at end

of the fiscal year 270,814$     246,198$     

The above totals are included in the following:

Claims payable 98,844$       81,342$       

Claims incurred but not reported 171,970       164,856       

Total 270,814$     246,198$     

(in thousands)
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

13. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 

Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2019 were as follows: 

Beginning 

Balance July 1, 

2018 Increases Decreases

Ending 

Balance June 

30, 2019

Due Within 

One Year

Accrued compensated 

absences 825,641$          651,657$          (504,263)$        973,035$          668,149$          

Net pension liability 13,478,904 610,269 -                     14,089,173 -                     

Net OPEB liability 10,429,917 728,110            -                     11,158,027 -                     

Total 24,734,462$    1,990,036$      (504,263)$        26,220,235$    668,149$          

14. Medicare Part D Subsidy 

The Medicare Part D prescription drug benefit became effective in January 2006. The State Health Plan, 
administered and managed by PEBA, Insurance Benefits, elected to maintain primary coverage for 
pharmaceuticals for its Medicare eligible retirees. By providing drug coverage at least as valuable as that 
in the standard Medicare Part D program, the State Health Plan qualifies for the Retiree Drug Subsidy (RDS), 
an incentive provided in the federal Part D law to encourage employers to retain good prescription benefits 
for retirees. The State Health Plan earned and recorded $136,786,938 in RDS funding for the year ended 
June 30, 2019. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

& 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

15. Direct Premium Revenues and Insurance Related Expenses 

Total insurance premium revenues and direct expenses by line of insurance are as follows. 

Total Third Party
Active Premium Claims Premium Administrative

Employees Retirees Revenue Expenses Expenses Expenses
Medical-PPO 1,680,695,503$      734,243,074$      2,414,938,577$      1,474,989,210$      -$                      58,310,004$     
Medical-fully 

insured 538,060                   83,779                  621,839                   -                            621,839                -                      
Dental 109,313,709            43,569,580          152,883,289            62,097,314              85,964,859          1,772,234          
Prescription  
  drug (1) -                            -                         -                            1,113,784,241        -                         20,195,675        
Life and optional 
  dependent life 46,270,252              -                         46,270,252              -                            46,248,711          -                      
Vision 21,863,345              6,000,556             27,863,901              -                            27,863,506          -                      
Long-term 
  disability 10,820,351              -                         10,820,351              -                            10,820,339          -                      

1,869,501,220$      783,896,989$      2,653,398,209$      2,650,870,765$      171,519,254$      80,277,913$     

Premium Revenues Expenses

(1) Prescription drug claims relate to the individual lines but are presented here in aggregate. 
(2) Claims expense presented above does not include the $100,803,193 contribution to the SCRHITF from PEBA, 

Insurance Benefits. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY,

 INSURANCE BENEFITS 

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREMENT SYSTEM PENSION PLAN 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2019 

Last 10 fiscal years1 ending June  30, 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 

Employer's proportion  of  the net pension  liability 0.06% 0.06% 0.06% 0.05% 0.05% 

Employer's proportionate  share  of  the collective  net liability $   14,089,173 $   13,478,904 $   12,367,845 $   10,335,436 $     8,602,246 

Employer's covered  payroll $     7,965,092 $     6,743,060 $     6,074,479 $     5,327,720 $     4,661,648 

Employer's share  of  the liability  as a  percentage of   covered  

payroll 176.89% 199.89% 203.60% 193.99% 184.53% 

Plan  net position  as a  percentage of   total pension  liability 54.10% 53.30% 52.90% 57.00% 59.90% 

Notes  to the  Schedule: 
1  - This schedule  will present 10 years of  information  once it is accumulated.
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY,

 INSURANCE BENEFITS 

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 

SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREMENT SYSTEM PENSION PLAN 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2019 

1
Last 10 fiscal years  ending June 30, 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 

Contractually required contribution $ 1,970,109 $ 1,818,301 $ 1,456,265 $ 948,643 $ 602,912 $ 480,935 

Contributions in relation to the 

contractually required contribution (992,790) (879,384) (712,738) (636,918) (557,218) (480,935) 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ 977,319 $ 938,917 $ 743,527 $ 311,725 $ 45,694 $ -

Covered Payroll $ 6,818,615 $ 7,965,092 $ 6,743,060 $ 6,074,479 $ 5,327,720 $ 4,661,648 

Contributions as a percentage of covered 

payroll 28.89% 22.83% 21.60% 15.62% 11.32% 10.32% 

Notes to the Schedule: 
1 - This schedule will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated.
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 

INSURANCE BENEFITS 

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET OPEB LIABILITY 

SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREE HEALTH INSURANCE TRUST FUND OPEB PLAN 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2019 

Last 10 fiscal years1 ending June 30, 2018 2017 

Employer's proportion of the net OPEB liability 0.08% 0.08% 

Employer's proportionate share of the collective net OPEB liability $ 11,158,027 $ 10,429,917 

Employer's covered payroll $ 6,790,371 $ 6,493,527 

Employer's share of the liability as a percentage of covered payroll 164.32% 160.62% 

Plan net position as a percentage of total OPEB liability 7.91% 7.60% 

Notes to the Schedule: 
1 - This schedule will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY, 

INSURANCE BENEFITS 

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS 

SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREE HEALTH INSURANCE TRUST FUND OPEB PLAN 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2019 

Last 10 fiscal years1 ending June 30, 2019 2018 2017 

Contractually required contribution $ 418,461 $ 373,470 $ 346,105 

Contributions in relation to the contractually 

required contribution (418,461) (373,470) (346,105) 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ -

Covered Payroll $ 6,916,706 $ 6,790,371 $ 6,493,527 

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 6.05% 5.50% 5.33% 

Notes to the Schedule: 
1 - This schedule will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY 

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2019 

South Carolina Retiree Health Insurance Trust Fund 

Fiscal year ending June 30, 2019 2018 2017 

Total OPEB liability 

Service cost $ 510,940,536 $ 521,172,493 $ 610,843,077 

Interest on the total OPEB liability 556,576,392 522,862,057 455,295,633 

Changes of benefit terms - - -

Difference between expected and actual experience (567,028,397) 246,504,202 (6,819,786) 

Changes of assumptions 1,163,754,700 (96,913,144) (1,478,557,636) 

Benefit payments (535,093,624) (466,121,568) (416,089,964) 

Net change in total OPEB liability 1,129,149,607 727,504,040 (835,328,676) 

Total OPEB liability - beginning 15,387,115,010 14,659,610,970 15,494,939,646 

Total OPEB liability - ending $ 16,516,264,617 $ 15,387,115,010 $ 14,659,610,970 

Plan fiduciary net position 

Employer contributions $ 533,327,819 $ 460,477,569 $ 411,799,086 

Nonemployer contributing entities 103,178,492 106,948,694 79,306,737 

OPEB plan net investment income 77,682,485 515,607 13,460,171 

Benefit payments (535,093,624) (466,121,568) (416,089,964) 

OPEB plan administrative expense (885,185) (65,000) (10,000) 

Other - - -

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 178,209,987 101,755,302 88,466,030 

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 1,216,530,062 1,114,774,760 1,026,308,730 

Plan fiduciary net position - ending $ 1,394,740,049 $ 1,216,530,062 $ 1,114,774,760 

Net OPEB liability - ending $ 15,121,524,568 $ 14,170,584,948 $ 13,544,836,210 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total OPEB 

liability 8.44% 7.91% 7.60% 

Covered payroll $ 8,748,981,785 $ 8,614,421,372 $ 8,437,059,071 

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll 172.84% 164.50% 160.54% 

Notes to Schedule: 

This ten year schedule will be completed as more information becomes available. 

Minor update to the health care trend assumptions. 

The long-term rate of return assumption was changed from 4.00% to 2.75% for fiscal year 2019. 

The discount rate changed from 3.62% as of June 30, 2018 to 3.13% as of June 30, 2019. 

The discount rate changed from 3.56% as of June 30, 2017 to 3.62% as of June 30, 2018. 

The discount rate changed from 2.92% as of June 30, 2016 to 3.56% as of June 30, 2017. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY 

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS (CONTINUED) 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2019 

South Carolina Long-Term Disability Insurance Trust Fund 

Fiscal year ending June 30, 2019 2018 2017 

Total OPEB liability 

Service cost $ 7,941,182 $ 7,555,741 $ 7,952,412 

Interest on the total OPEB liability 1,536,123 1,481,366 1,399,527 

Changes of benefit terms - - -

Difference between expected and actual experience (1,329,978) (207,107) -

Changes of assumptions 1,224,654 (58,966) (182,868) 

Benefit payments, including refunds of contributions (7,889,317) (8,020,511) (8,205,609) 

Net change in total OPEB liability 1,482,664 750,523 963,462 

Total OPEB liability - beginning 39,261,091 38,510,568 37,547,106 

Total OPEB liability - ending $ 40,743,755 $ 39,261,091 $ 38,510,568 

Plan fiduciary net position 

Employer contributions $ 7,532,690 $ 7,479,841 $ 7,288,566 

Nonemployer contributing entities - - 400,000 

OPEB plan net investment income 2,972,915 52,944 371,679 

Benefit payments (7,889,317) (8,020,511) (8,205,609) 

OPEB plan administrative expense (40,651) (10,000) (10,000) 

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 2,575,637 (497,726) (155,364) 

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 36,199,863 36,697,589 36,852,953 

Plan fiduciary net position - ending $ 38,775,500 $ 36,199,863 $ 36,697,589 

Net OPEB liability - ending $ 1,968,255 $ 3,061,228 $ 1,812,979 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total OPEB 

liability 95.17% 92.20% 95.29% 

Covered payroll N/A N/A N/A 

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll N/A N/A N/A 

Notes to Schedule: 

This ten year schedule will be completed as more information becomes available. 

The long-term rate of return assumption was changed from 4.00% to 3.00% for fiscal year 2019. 

The single discount rate changed from 3.91% as of June 30, 2018 to 3.04% as of June 30, 2019. 

The single discount rate changed from 3.87% as of June 30, 2017 to 3.91% as of June 30, 2018. 

The single discount rate changed from 3.74% as of June 30, 2016 to 3.87% as of June 30, 2017. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY 

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

SCHEDULE OF NET OPEB LIABILITY 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2019 

South Carolina Retiree Health Insurance Trust Fund 

Plan Net 

Fiscal Year Position as Net OPEB 

Ending Total OPEB Plan Net Net OPEB a % of Total Covered Liability as a % of 

June 30, Liability Position Liability OPEB Liability Payroll Covered Payroll 

2019 16,516,264,617 1,394,740,049 15,121,524,568 8.44% 8,748,981,785 172.84% 

2018 15,387,115,010 1,216,530,062 14,170,584,948 7.91% 8,614,421,372 164.50% 

2017 14,659,610,970 1,114,774,760 13,544,836,210 7.60% 8,437,059,071 160.54% 

2016 15,494,939,646 1,026,308,730 14,468,630,916 6.62% 8,137,661,670 177.80% 

South Carolina Long-Term Disability Insurance Trust Fund

Plan Net 

Fiscal Year Position as Net OPEB 

Ending Total OPEB Plan Net Net OPEB a % of Total Covered Liability as a % of 

June 30, Liability Position Liability OPEB Liability Payroll Covered Payroll 

2019 40,743,755 38,775,500 1,968,255 95.17% N/A N/A 

2018 39,261,091 36,199,863 3,061,228 92.20% N/A N/A 

2017 38,510,568 36,697,589 1,812,979 95.29% N/A N/A 

2016 37,547,106 36,852,952 694,154 98.15% N/A N/A 

Notes to Schedules: 

This ten year schedule will be completed as more information becomes available. 

For SCRHTIF, the single discount rate changed from 3.62% as of June 30, 2018 to 3.13% as of June 30, 2019. 

For SCRHTIF, the single discount rate changed from 3.56% as of June 30, 2017 to 3.62% as of June 30, 2018. 

For SCRHITF, the single discount rate changed from 2.92% as of June 30, 2016 to 3.56% as of June 30, 2017. 

For SCLTDITF, the single discount rate changed from 3.91% as of June 30, 2018 to 3.04% as of June 30, 2019. 

For SCLTDITF, the single discount rate changed from 3.87% as of June 30, 2017 to 3.91% as of June 30, 2018. 

For SCLTDITF, the single discount rate changed from 3.74% as of June 30, 2016 to 3.87% as of June 30, 2017. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AUTHORITY 

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS 

SCHEDULE OF OPEB INVESTMENT RETURNS 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2019 

South Carolina Retiree Health Insurance Trust Fund 

Fiscal Year 

Ending Annual 

June 30, Return1 

2019 6.77% 

2018 0.27% 

2017 1.36% 

South Carolina Long-Term Disability Insurance Trust Fund 

Fiscal Year 

Ending Annual 

June 30, Return1 

2019 8.13% 

2018 0.14% 

2017 1.00% 

1 - Annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment expenses. 

Note: This ten year schedule will be completed as more information 

becomes available. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Mr. George L. Kennedy, CPA 
State Auditor 
Office of the State Auditor and 
Members of the South Carolina Public 
Employee Benefit Authority 

South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority Insurance Benefits, the South Carolina Retiree 
  Health Insurance Trust Fund and the South Carolina Long-Term Disability Insurance Trust Fund  
Columbia, South Carolina 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of South Carolina 
Public Employee Benefit Authority Insurance Benefits, the South Carolina Retiree Health Insurance 
Trust Fund and the South Carolina Long-Term Disability Insurance Trust Fund, collectively referred to 
as “PEBA Insurance Benefits,” as of and for the year ended, June 30, 2019, and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise PEBA Insurance Benefits’ basic financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 15, 2019. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered PEBA Insurance 
Benefits' internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of PEBA Insurance 
Benefits’ internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of PEBA 
Insurance Benefits’ internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Office of the State Auditor and Members 
South Carolina Public 
Employee Benefit Authority 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether PEBA Insurance Benefits' financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have 
a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of PEBA 
Insurance Benefits’ internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering PEBA Insurance Benefits’ 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

a 
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Baltimore, Maryland 
October 15, 2019 
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